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CERTIFIC

Certificate no. 3710

SUKHJT AGRO INDUSTRIES
(A UNIT OF THE SUKHJIT STARCH & CHEMICALS | T12.3
VILL. GUR PLAH (BATHUY SUB. TEH. HAROLI,
DISTT. INA {H.12} 174 301, INDIA.

G5 Zdrich AG certifies that the Management Systemn of the above mentioned company has bean assessed
and meets the requirements established by the following rules :

WHICH HAS BEEN IN CONFORMANCE TO THE RECGHHREMEMNTS OF

WHO-GMP

The maragement sysiem includes :

MANUFACTURE & SUPPLY OF MAIZE STARCH. ITS BYFRODUCTS LIKE
GLUTEN. GERM. BHAN (COARSE & FINF} & DERIVATIVES LIKE DEXTRINES,
MODIFIED STARCHFES, LIQUID GLUCOSE. DEXTROSE MONOHYDRATE.
HHGH MALTOSE SYRUP & MALTO DEXTRINE (FOWDFR & SYRUP)

EA Sector 3

Im thé colrse of e validty of the present cartiticata the enterprss managemenl system must permanently
sabisty 118 requirements of the interaational ragulasinns
The fulfilmen? of Ihese regulations wifl ba regularly coatrolled by OS5 Sinch AG
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This Is 1o cortidy that
Quality Management System

f

SUKHIJIT STARCH MILLS.

Mubaraknagar, Nizamabad-503 003, INDIA.

complies with the requirements of

150 9001:2008

This certificate is valid concerning all activities related to -

'
et

Manufacturing and Supply of Maize Starch, Liquid Glucose,
Malto Dextrin, Modified Starches and By Products.
ANZSIC Code : C 2174, C 2179
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THE SUKHJIT STARCH & CHEMICALS LIMITED, PHAGWARA

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sh. 5.C. lindal - Chairman

5h. W K. Sardana

5h. AK. Sardana

5h. Naresh Sardana

Sh. 5.K. Anand

Sh. W.P. Kapahi

5h. 1.LK. Sardana-Managing Director

5h. KK, Sardana-Jt. Managing Director

sh. .M. Jindal-Executive Director & Secretary

BANKERS
Pumjab National Bank
G.T. Road, Phagwara-144 401.

AUDITORS

M/s ¥ K. Sud & Company
Chartered Accountants

Durga Niwas, Opp. Friends Cinema,
lalandhar,

REGISTERED OFFICE
Fhagwara-144 401 {fb_)

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS
M/s. Skyline Financial Services (Pvt.} Ltd.
D-153A, Ist Floar, Ckhla Industrial Area,
Fhase-l, New Dalhi-110020

Tel. : 311-26812682, 83

Fax : 011-26812684
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara /_

NOTICE

NMOTICE is herebyy given that the G¥th Annua- General Mesting of the Members of The Sukbyit Starch & Cremicals
to.wll be neld at the Registered Office of the Campany, at Phagwara, on Wednesday, the 27th day of July, 7017
at 1000 ACM. 1o tramsact the followrng business ;

ORDINARY BEUSINESS

1. Toreceve, consider anc adapt the Directors” Report, Auditors' Report, Audited Balance Sheot ana Proft &
Loss Account for the year ended 373,201,

2 Todeclare fina’ cividend on the Equity Shares for the year erded 31.3.2011.

3. Teappoint Director in olace of Shri 5.K. Anand who retires by rotation and being eligible, o*fcrs nrmself for
re-appoimtrent
Taappoeint Director in place of Shri V.P. Kapahi whno retires by retation and being eligible, offers himself for
re appointrent.

> Toappoint Auditars to holo office from the corclusion of this Annua’ General Meeting Ul the conclusion of
the next Annual General Meeting ara fis their rermunerasion.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

B To wonsider and if tiougat fit, pass with or withoot meaification(s) the fadlowerng resolution as a speaal
resclutien
CResoved that pursuant to the provisions ot Sub Section (18] o Section 314 and otkher applicable ATTSITINTSTIS
of 1ne Companies Act, 1956, if any read with tne (irectors Relatives [oHice a- place of profit] Rules, 2003,
consent of the company be and is horeby granted o nereasef revise 1he salary of Shr Bhavdeep Sardana, .
Vice President & CECx for the time being of the Gurplah Unit of the Com pany as per particulars quven - the
Explanatory Staterment.
Furtner Besolved that the Bohard of Directors be and is hereby authorized to effect sacn rnodificationfs) in
the remuneration of Shri Bhavdeep Sardana as per tho provisions of the Act and as may be agroed to
between the Board of Directors and Shr Bhavdeoep Sardana, with in the overail himats proscribed ander the
At/ Rales ™

T Tooconader and if thought fit, pass with or withoat mogificationds) tne fodlowirg resolution as a special
resolution
“Resehved that pursuant to the provisions of Section (1B} of Sectien 314 and other applicable provisions of
the Companics Act, 1956, 1f 2y, read with the Directars Relatives (office or place of profit) Rules, 2003,
consent of the cormpany be and is hereby granted to inceasve/ revise the salary af Shri Dhiraj Sardana, S Yice
Fresident % CEC, for the time being of the Malda Unit of the Company as per pdrticulars given ap the
Explanatory Statement.
Further Resolved that the Board of Directars be and is hereby authorized to etfect such modificaticn{s} in
the remuneration of Shr Dhiraj $ardana as per the provisions of the Act and as may be agreed 1o between
the Board of Directors and Shri Dhuraj Sardana, with in the ovarall limits prescribed under the Act/Riles."

8y Order of the Board

-
Tace : Phagwara 5 M.JINDAL
Crrtend . 11th June, 2011 Executive Dhrector & Secretary

NOTES .

T A Memaer, entitted to arterd and vote at the meetling. is entitled to appoint 2 proxy to attend ard vote
mstean of himself anc the proxy need not ne a memoer af the Larmpany. 1he instrument appoint.ng prosy
shicula, howewer, be depouted at the Registered Office of the Company not fess than FOR1Y FIGHT HOURS
befzre the cormmencement of the reeting.

2. The hareholoers, intending to seek any clarification an tne accounts, in the mMeeting, dre reguestan to
Inform the company at least seven cays In advance frem the date of the Annual General Meetirg. A capy of
the Balaree Sheet as at 313 2011 ard Profit & Lass Acount for the year endea on that date tagether with
the Auaiters’ Report and Dircctars” Report thereon are alio enclosed. Mermbavs are, Howewer, reguleslaes to
aring Laeir copes of tae Annual Report 1o the meeting.
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“he Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

~

s

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed fram 16th July,
2011 to 27th luly, 2011 (both days inclusive).

Members are requested to notify any change in their addresses immediately to the Registrar-cum-Share
Transfer Agents of the Company.

The Dividend Warrants, to the resident members of the Company, will be posted within 30 days from the
date of declaration of dividend.

The Members are hereby informed that the Dividends, which remain unclaimed/unencashed over a period of
7 years, have to be transferred by the Company te the Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) constituted
by the Central Government under section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956. Further, under the amended
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, no claim shall lie for the unclaimed dividend either from the company
or from IEPF thereafter.

The Members, who have not encashed their dividend warrants for the financial year 2003-2004, 2004-2005,
20052006, 2006-2007, 2007 2008, 2008-2009 and 2009-2010 may approach the company for revalidation of
the original dividend warrants or for obtaining duplicate dividend warrants. The unpaid/unclaimed amount
will be deposited to the Investors Education and Protection Fund as per the given schedule

Dividend for Financial Year Date of Declaration Due date for Deposit

Z2003-2004 17.09.2004 16.08.2011
2004-2005 27.09.2005 26.089.2012
2005-2006 20.09.2006 19.09.2013
2006-2007 12.09.2007 11.09.2014
2007-2008 Z27.08.2008 26.08 2015
2008-2009 25.08.2009 24.08.2016
2009-2010 09.08.2010 08.08.2017

8  The Provisions of section 109A and 1098 of the Companies Act, 1956 have extended the momination and
transmission facility to the shareholders of a company. The sharehclders can avail the above facility by
furnishing to the Company, the particulars of their nominee(s). Every person who becomes the nominee, by
virtue of Section 109A, may upon the production of such evidence, as may be required by the Board, elect
either to get himself registered as the holder of the securities or to make such transfers as the case may be
as the deceased holder could have made.
9. The shares of the Company are under the compulsory demat list, so trading in the equity shares can only be
made in dematerialized form. In case you have not dematerialized your shares, you may do so by opening an
account with a depository participant.
10. Infoermation under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, Mumbai in respect of Directors
seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting is given hereunder
(a) Shri S.K. Anand retires by rotation in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment.
shri 5.K. Anand is B.E. (Elec.} qualified and presently working as the Managing Director of M/s. Nimbua
Greenfield (Punjab) Ltd. He has headed many leading organizations successfully controlling/leading their
vital managenal/administrative/operational functions. He has worked as Executive Director and Managing
Director of M/s. North Eastern Supply Co. of Crissa. He has served Punjab State Flectricity Board as Chief
Engineer for 4 years and thereafter Member {Distribution) of the Board for quite sometime. He has a
rrch managerial, administrative and commercial experience to his credit. He holds 1002 shares of our
company,

(b) Shri V.P. Kapahi retires by rotation in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment.
Shri V.P. Kapahi is B.A,, C.A.ILLB. qualified and a retired Senior Executive of a Public Section Bank having
long experience in industrial financial besides a strong commercial & managerial capability to his credit.
He does not hold any other directorship and holds 1000 shares of our company.
Both the directors have long commercial, administrative and managerial experience to their credit. They
are assoclated with the company as the independent directors since 2006 and have contributed significantly
to the overall growth of the Company.
The Board, therefore, recommends their re-appointment. Each of the two Directors and may be deemed
to be interested in the resolution relating to their re-appointment.
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT{S) OF iTEM NO. 6, 7 & 8
{PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956)

ITEM NO. &

Shri Bhavdeep Sardana was appointed as Vice Presidant (Operations) of Nizamatad Unit of the Company with effect from 171/

2005 at a salary of Rs. 30,0004- p.m. with usual perks, applicable to other senior Executives as per rules of the company. His

appointment was duly approved by tha Share-holders in the Annual General Meeting as par provisions of section 314 of The

Companies Act, 19546,

Shri Bhavdeep Sardana is qualified Engineer from 2 leading University of UK. He has made substantial contribution in improving

the operations of Nizamabad Unit while working as Vice President {Operations) of that Unit and thereafter in commissioning

and successful running of Gurptah Unit of the Company, where productivity and efficiency has considerably improved with

substantial increase in the profitakility. His salary was revised in the financial year 2007-2008 to Rs. 90,000/ - p.m. with usual perks

as apnlicahle to other senior executives of the company after ohtaining consent of the sharehalders in their Annual General

Meeting dated 12/09/2007 ana thereafter necessary approval of the Central Government vide their office letter dated 12712/

2007, in pursuance 1¢ the provisions of section 314{16) of the Companies Act, 1956, His present salary does not carmmensurate

with the responsibilities shouldered by him and not comparable with the remuneration being paid 1o other senior executives of

his bevel of the company. His salary can only be increased with the approval of sharehalders, as required under the provisions of

section 214 of the Companies Act 1956 read with the Directors Relatives (Office or Place of Profil} Rules, 2003, The Board,

tharefore, in the overall interest and future growth of the Company, recommend increase/revision in bis salary in the pay wale

of Rs. 1,00.000/- to Rs. 2, 50,000/ {with annual increment as the management may deem fit as per the rules of the Company} with

usual perks as applicable 1o other Senior Executives of his level e,

1. Ha wilf be entitled to free accommodation with reasonahble furnishing as per rules of the Company.

2. He will be efigible ta the benefits of, provident fund, superannuation fund and group gratuity schemea as per rules of the
sompany as applicable 10 the executives of this level fram time to time.

1. Facilines of medical redimbursement, ieave travel assistance and company's car, telephone subject o a condition that cost of
persanal journey and personal telephane calls will be recoverable from him or an actual basis. Any change in the terms may
b made as agraed to by the Board of Directors and Shri Bhavdeep 5ardana.

4. Personal accident insurance and mediclaim insurance policies a3 per Rules of the Company.

MNone of the Directars except Shri K. K. Sardana, being father of Shri Bhavdeep Sardana, is concerned or interested in the

reso.ution.

ITEM NO. 7

Shri Dhiraj Sardana was appointad as Vice President {Operations) of Malda Unit of the Company with effect from 1,/4/2005 at a

salary of Rs. 30,000/~ p.m. with usual perks, applicable to other senior Executives as per rules of the company. His apgointment

was duly approved by the Share-holders in the Annual General Meeting as per provisions of section 314 of The Companies Act,

1356

Shri Dhiraj Sardana is B.B.A. in Business & Finance from a leading University of LK. and has strangly improved and strengthened

the Management functions of Malda Unit raising its praductivity, efficiency and profitability considerably. Ha has played a key

role in develaping export market for the company and actively involved in the ongeing substantial expansion of Malda unit of
tha cornpary. His salary was revised in the financial year 2007-2008 to Rs. 90,000/ p.m. with usual parks as applicabla to other

seniar executives of the company after obtaining cansent of the sharaholders in their Annual General Meeting dated 12/05; 2007

and thareatter necessary approval of the Central Government vide their office [etter dated 12/12/2007, in pursuance to the

provisions of section 314{1E) of the Companias Act, 1956. His present salary does not commensurate with his qualification and
experience and not comparable with the remuneration being paid to other senior executives of his level of the company. His

salary can only be increased with the appraval of shareholders, as per the provisions of section 314 of the Companies Act, 1956

read with the Directars Relatives (Office or Place of Profit] Rules, 2003, The Board, therefore, inthe overall interest of the unit and

tha Company, recommend increase; ravision in his salary in the pay scale of Rs. 1,00,000/- ta Rs. 2,50,000/- {(with annual incrament
as the management may deem fit as par tha rulas of the Company} with usual perks as applicakle to other 5enior Executives of

his level e

1. He will be entitled to free accommodation with reasonable furnishing as per rules of the Company.

2. He will be aligible to the benefits of, provident fund, superannuation fund and group gratuity scheme as per rules of the
company as applicable to the executives of this level fram time to time.

3. Facifities of medical re-imbursement, leave trave! assistance and company’s car, telephone subject to a condition that cost of
persanal jpurney and personal telephane calls will be recaoverable from him on an actual basis, Any change in the terms may
ke made as agreed 1o by the Board of Directors and Shri Crhiraj Sardana.

4. Personal accident insurance and mediclaim insurance policies as per Rules of the Company.

Maone of the Cirectors except Shii LK, Sardana, being father of Shr Dhira) 5ardana, 5 concernad ar interested inthe resolution,

3
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

DIRECTORS" REPORT

Dear Share Holders :
Your Directors’ are pleased to present before you the 67th Annual Report and the Audited Statement of Accounts
for the year ended 31st March, 2011 -

1.

FINANCIAL RESULTS 2010-11 2009-10

(Rs. in Crores) (Rs. in Crores)
Sales & Other income . 354.46 266.28
Profit before tax & depreciation 56.09 24,85
Profit before tax but after depreciation 49.45 18.91
Provision for taxes (10.65) (4.47)
Protit After Tax 38.80 14.44
Taxes relating to previous years 0.02 {0.23)
Surplus brought forward from previous year 5.00 4.49
Surplus available for appropriation 43.78 19.17
Proposed dividend (including Corporate Tax) 6.87 5.16
Transfer to General Reserve 30.00 9.00
Surplus carried forward 6.91 5.00
PERFORMANCE

The gross sales and other income of the Company have increased from Rs.266.28 Crores to Rs. 354.46 Crares
registering an excellent growth of 33%. Operating Profits of the Company have shown manifold growth to Rs.
56.09 Crores against Rs. 24.85 Crores previous year. Profit after providing Rs. 6.64 Crores (Rs. 5.94 Crores) for
depreciation and Rs. 10.65 Crores {Rs. 4.47 Crores) for taxation, leave a net profit of Rs. 38.80 Crores (Rs.
14.44 Crores). A sum of Rs. 30.00 Crores has been proposed to be transferred to general reserves against Rs.
9.00 Crores last year,

The increase in sales has been achieved by high capacity utilizing of Nizamabad unit and optimization of
capacities at other units of the Company. The company has been able to procure its basis raw material in time
and at a right price during the main maize procurement season, leading to lower material cost and higher
profitability during the year.

FUTURE PROSPECTUS

As required under the Corporate Governance, the Management Discussion and Analysis, forming part of this
report, reflects the current state of affairs of business.

The expansion of Malda Unit is expected to be commissioned by the end of this year and it is expected that
the higher capacity utilization by other units of the company will enable an overall increase of over 15% in its
operations during the current year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your company is fully committed to the philosophy of transparency and believes in conducting the business
with due compliance of all the applicable laws, rules and regulations. The company has duly implemented the
system of Corporate Governance as per the requirements of the Listing Agreement. The detailed report
appears in the Annexures forming part of this report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors are pleased to recommend a final dividend of 40% taking total dividend to 80% during the
financial year ended 31st March, 2011 against 60% last year. The dividend has been recommended with a view
to conserve resources for the ongoing expansion at Malda unit and balancing of operations at Gurplah unit of
the company.
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Pursuant to Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors confirm :

{1} thatinthe preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2011, the applicable
Accounting Standards have been followed alongwith proper explanations relating to material departures;

{1} that the Directors have selected such accounting pelicies and applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year so ended ;

(i) that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate accounting
records In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safequarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities ; and

(iv) that the Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2011 an a
‘going concern’ basis.

DEPOSITS

All the deposits have been renewed/repaid as per the provisions of Seclion 58-A of the Companies Act, 1956
and rules made thereunder. The company had no unclaimed/unpaid deposits on 31/03/2011.

SUBSIHARY COMPANIES AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

(a) The Vijoy Steel & General Mills Company Ltd., Phagwara : The company has incurred losses due to higher
Input cost. However, 1L 1s expected to perform reasonably well during the current year.

(b)) Sukhpt Finance Ltd., Phagwara : The operations of the company have been shut down to ward off
unrecessary losses,

(<) Scotl Industries Ltd., Phagwara : The company has not been able to perform well due to lower sales and
overall poor performance of the textile sector in the Country.

[here has been no material change in the nautre of business of the Subsidiaries.

Asrequired under the Listing Agreement with the Bombay Stock Exchange, a Consolidated Finandial Statement

of the Company and its subsidiaries is attached, which has been prepared in accardance with the relevant

Accuunting Standard(s] as prescribed under Section 211 {3C) of the Companies Act, 1956,

I pursuance to the general arcular issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Balance Sheet, Profit &

L oss Account and other documents of the subsidiary companies are not being attached with the Balance Sheet

of the Company. A statement containing the reguisite financial details of the company’s subsidiaries for the

financial year ended 31st March, 2011 is annexed to the consolidated resulls in the Annual Report. The annual

accounts of these subsidiaries and the related detailed information will be made avatlable to any shareholder

of the Company/its subsidiaries who may be interested in seeking such information and are also available for

Inspection by any shareholder of the Company/its subsidiaries at the registered office of the Company/its

subsidiary companies. The Company shall furnish a copy of details of annual accounts of subsidaries to any

sharehoider on demand.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Disputed Liabibties, not adjusted as expense in the accounts indude Rs. 17.24 crores (Rs. 15.93 Crores prev.
year) on account of Central Excise Duty. The major item, consists of Rs. 17.06 crores {Rs. 15.90 crores Prey,
Year) excluding penalty and interest on account of demands raised by Central Excise Department since 01.04.1997
alleging sale of Maize Starch as that of Modified Starch. The demand is totally baseless/frivolous since the
chemical examiner of CENTRAL REVENUE LABORATORY has clearly held the product to be Maize Starch,
Moreaver, the product being manufactured by the company for the last over six decades has been sold as
Maise Starch, accepted by the market as Maize Starch and classified as Maize Starch by the Department, itself,
from time to time. Hon'ble High Court has since stayed the demand and the matter is subjudice.

JNCLAIMED SHARES DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
The company has opened the "unclaimed shares demat suspense account” with M/s India Infoline Ltd. (DP Id.

CIN 302269), as required under the SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/10/2010 dated 16th December, 2010 to
transfer and maintain the unclaimed shares in the saitd account,
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

1.

PERSCONNEL

Pursuant to Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, the details of the employees who were in receipt of
remuneration over Rs. 60.00 lacs if employed throughout the year or Rs. 5.00 lacs p.m. if employed for a part
of the year is given below :

(a)The Persons employed through out the year and were in receipt of remuneration aggregating not less than
Rs. 60,00,000/- for the year ;

No. Name Age Designation Gross Remuneration (Rs.)
1, Sh. LK. Sardana 65 Managing Director 70,46,096/-
2. Sh. K. K. Sardana 63 . Managing Director 63,28,660/-
Qualification | Experience Date of Joining Last Employment/Designation Held

BA. 45 Years 02.08.1967 The Sukhjit 5tarch & Chemicais Ltd., Phagwara
Sales Manager
B.A. 40 Years 18.01.1872 The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Ltd., Phagwara
G.M. {Commercial)

14.

12.

13.

(b) The Persons employed for a part of the year and were in receipt of remuneration at a rate not less than
Rs. 500000/- per month Nl

Note : The Remuneration shown above includes salaries, allowances, commission, contribution to provident fund

and perquisites value in accordance with Income tax rules.

DIRECTORS
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, Shri 5.K. Anand and Shri V.P. Kapahi retire by
rotation and being eligibte, the Board recommend their reappointment.

AUDITORS

M/s. Y.K. Sud & Company, Chartered Accountants, the retiring Auditors of the Company, have confirmed their
eligibility to be re-appointed as Auditors of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Board of
Directors recommend re-appointment of M/s. Y K. Sud & Co., Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company to
hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Directors would like to express their grateful appreciation for the co-operation received from the

bankers and place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the devoted services of the executives, staff
and workers of the Company for its success.

Yours truly,
For and on behalf of the Board,

5.C. JINDAL
Chairman

Dated : 10th June, 2011
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ANNEXURE A’

STATEMENT CONTAINING PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES [DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN
THE REPQRT QF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RLULES, 1983 AND FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2011,

.
1.

Iv.

{A) POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION
ELECTRICITY
(@] Purchase Units - 000 KWH
Total Amount Rs. 000
Rate/Unit Rs.
{b) Own Generation
{1} Through Diesel Generatian
— Units — Q00 KWWK
- Units per Ltr. of Diesel oil
— Cost/Unit Rs.

COAL {5team Coal used an Boilers)
Quantity {M. Tons)

Total Cost Rs. Q00

Average Rate Rs /AT

OTHERS (Rice Husk / Fire Wood]
Quantity (M. Tons)

Total Cost Rs. 000

Average Rate Bs /MT

(B) CONSUMPTION PER M.TCN QF PRODUCTION
STANDARD. if any

Proeduction in M. Tans il
Flectricity—KWH/Tan, Mil
Coal - Kgs/Ton. Ml
Others - Rice Husk — #gs/Tan. il

(%} Variation due to change in product mix.

CLURRENT YEAR FREVIGLUS YEAR

37.590 32,642

1.74,727 1,317,158

4.65 4.2}

491 B85

3.25 325

11.37 9.98

14,563 22,608

73,878 93,837

4.460 4,150

38,104 24,680

1,10,629 B5165

2,903 2,640
CURRENT YEAR FREVICOLIS YEAR

1.65,740 1,842,772

227 ¥ 229 T
100 * 158 *
230 * 173 *

TECHNOLOGY ABSORFPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION
Fhe Company has not entered into any technical collaboration agreement. |1t has not acquired any technical

know-how from any foreign source so far.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Research & Development programme already carried out by the company has started bearing fruits and
Maize growing has started gaining ground in the State of Punjab. Procurement of Maize from the state s

‘MCreasing year over year.

EXPENDITUREONR & D

The Compary has spent about Rs, 46.70 Lacs during the year under reference {Rs. 34.60 Lacs during prew.
year] in pursuit of impraving the guality of products line, developing new products and improving their

application.
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V. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

1. The Foreign Exchange Earnings of the Company have been Rs. 1,78,78,071/- during the current year
(Rs. 2,60,83,653/- during prev. year) on F.O.B. basis.

2. The Company has imported capital goods of Rs. 36,18,638/- (Rs. 24,53,962/- during prev. year) on C.I.F. basis,
raw materials and consumables of Rs. 9,23,758/- {(Rs. 29,73,431/- during prev. year) and incurred foreign
travelling expenditure of Rs. 3,90,653/- (Rs. 1,04,115/- during Prev. Year).

ANNEXURE 'B' STATEMENT SHOWING SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES PURSUANT TO SECTION 212
OF THE COMPANIES ACT,1956.

1. Name of the Company The Vijoy Steel & Sukhjit Finance Ltd. Scott Industries Ltd.
Gen. Mills Co. Ltd.

2. Holding Company's Interest Holding 2,23,800 equity Holding 46,112,600 equity  Holding 44,00,000 equity
shares in the subscribed  shares in the subscribed  shares in the subscribed
& fully paid up capital & fully paid up capital & fully paid up capital
of 2,330,640 equity shares of 49,500,000 equity of 44,01,400 equity
of Rs. 10/- each shares of Rs. 10/- each shares of Rs. 10/- each

3. Net aggregate amount of
subsidiary company's profits
less losses so far as it
concerns the members of the
holding company and Is not
dealt with, in company’s

accounts
(a) For the year ended 31.3.2011 (3,67,017) {34,02,600) (57,40,982)
(b} For the previous financial 4,09,888 {2,71,45,873) {1,39,72,161)

years of the subsidiary of
the company

4. Net aggregate amount of subsidiary

company's profit less losses or

vice versa dealt with or provided

for in the company’s accounts

(a) For the company's financial — — —
year ended 31.3.2011

(b} For the previous financial years 7,07,712 2,96,08,629 —
of the subsidiary since it
became subsidiary
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ANNEXURE 'C’

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
In terms of revised clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges :

1.

BRIEF NOTE ON COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY :

The company has always believed in good Corporate Governance, transparency, fair business, integrity,
commitment to the values and other Standard Corporate Practices which help the company to maximise
long term shareholders value and in building a bond of trust with its employees, customers, creditors, lenders
and others. The company has always remained prompt and regular in discharging its statutory obligations
and duties.

The Beard has constituted various committees of Directors from time to time and the meetings of the Board
and Committees thereof have been held as frequently as required for proper conduct and effective control
over the affairs of the company. All the Directors, attending the Board and Committee meetings, actively
participate in the proceedings and decisions are taken accordingly.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS :

The Board of Directors comprises 3 Non-Executive Independent Chairman, one Managing Director, One Joint
Managing Director, one Executive Director, three Non-Executive Directors and two Independent Directors.
During the year 2010-2011 Eleven Board meetings were held on : 28.04.2010, 29.04.2010, 17.06.2010, 18.06.2010,
09.08.2010, 26.10.2010, 27.10.2010, 17.12.2010, 27.01.2011, 28.01.2011 & 05.03.2011.

The composition of the Board of Directors and their Attendance at the meetings during the year are given
below :

Name of the Director Category of Directorship Number of the No. of the No. of the
board Directorships Committees
meetings held in other Positions held in
attended Indian public other Indian
limited Public limited
Companies Companies
Shri S.C. Jindal Independent Chairman 7 - —
Shri i.K. Sardana Managing Director 11 2 4 {member)
Shri K.K. Sardana Jt. Managing Director 7 2 —
Shri 5.M. Jindal Executive Director 1 3 -
Shri V.K. Sardana Non Executive Director 9 1 -
Shn A.K. Sardana Non Executive Director 9 - —
Shri Naresh Sardana Non Executive Director 3 - -
Shri 5.K. Anand Independent Director 9 1 -
Shri V.P. Kapahi Independent Director 10 - -

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors have constituted the following Committees with adequate delegation of powers :

(1) Audit Committee : The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three Independent Directors. The
role of the Audit Committee covers the areas mentioned under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and
Section 292A the Companies Act, 1956 or other matters as may be referred by the Board of Directors
from time to time. These, inter-alia, include to oversee the capital & revenue budget of the company,
oversee the company’s financal reporting process, review with the management the adequacy of internal
control system, hold discussions with auditors about the internal control system and scope of audit
including observations of the Auditors, review company's financial & risk management policies and
review with the management the quarterly, half yearly & annual financial statements before submission
to the Board.
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ANNEXURE 'C

(i)

(iii}

(iv)

The composition of the Audit Committee i1s given below :

Shri 5.C. Jindatl Independent Chairman
Shri S.K. Anand independent Director
Shri V.P. Kapahi independent Director

Shri §.M. Jindal, Executive Director & Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary of the Committee.
Share Transfer Committee :
The details of Share Transfer Committee and their meetings are given below :

Meetings held during the year Meetings attended

Shril.K. Sardana Chairman 24 21
Shri K.K. Sardana Member 24 16
Shri S.M. lindal Member 24 22

Shareholders/Investors Grievances .

The number of complaints received from the sharehoiders have been quite negligible during the year
under reference. The Board has, however, appointed a Committee of Directors comprising of Shri A.K.
Sardana as Chairman, 5hri 5.C. Jindal and Shri 5.K. Anand, Members and Shri $.M. Jindal as Member /
Secretary which redress the Investors Grievances or their complaints expeditiously.

Remuneration Committee .

The company has three Whole Time Directors on the Board whose appointment and remuneration have
been fixed by the Board in terms of resolution passed by the members in general meetings as per
schedule Xl to The Companies Act, 1956. However, the Board has constituted a Remuneration Committe
cemprising of Shri 5.K. Anand as Chairman, 5hn $.C. Jindal and Shr1V.P. Kapahi as members, all independent

directors of the company to decide/review the remuneration of the whole-time Directors as per provisions
of The Companies Act 1956.

Remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the financial year is given below :-
{Amount in Rs.)

Name Salary Commission Perquisite Retirement Total
Value Benefits

Sh. 1.LK. Sardana  32,40,000 24,56,231 10,87,065 2,62,800 70,46,096

Sh. K.K. Sardana  29,80,000 24,56,231 64,8,829 2.43,600 63,28.660

Sh. 5.M. Jindal 29,80,000 24,56,230 19,7,304 2,43,600 58,77.134

Remuneration Paid 1o Non Executive Directors :

The company has been paying commission @ 1% of the net profits of the company, computed under section
349/350 of the Companies Act, 1956 for the last many years as per necessary approvai/sanction obtained at
that time and approval of the sharehoiders obtained by way of special resolution in the Annual General
Meeting for continuation of the same. Non Executive Directors are also paid Sitting Fee @ Rs. 3,500/- per
meeting besides out of pocket expenses / travelling expenses incurred in connection with attending the said
meetings. The Company does not have any Stock Option Scheme.

4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
The details of location and time for the last three Annual General meetings are given below:

Date Location Time

27/08/2008 Regd. Office, Phagwara 10.00 A.M.
25/08/2009 Regd. Office, Phagwara 10.00 A.M.
09/08/2010 Regd. Office, Phagwara 10.00 A.M.

10
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5. Disclosures regarding materially related party transactions :
No transaction of material nature has been entered into by the Company with its Fromoters, Directors,
Relatives or the Managerment which could have potertial conflict with the interest of the company. However,
the transactions with related parnes in ordinary course of business, in terms of AS- 18, are given a: per point
Mo, 9 of the Schedule T-1 {Notes to Accounts] farming part of this Anmuoal Report.

6. Means of Communication
Quarterly / six monthly results of the company alongwith the notice of the Board Meetings for approval of
the Unaudited financial results were published during the financial year under review as per reguirements ol
the Listing Agreement. Quarterly compliance reports, Demat Status Reports, Shareholding Pattern & other

required information were duly communicated / submittod to the Stock Exchange within the prescribed
time.

7. LOCATION OF PLANTS
(i} The Sukihjit Starch & Chemicals Ltd.
Sarar Eoad, Phagwara (PB.)
Fhone No. {01824) 468800, 260216, 260314
Fax Nev. : {01824} 261669, 26207 ¢
E-mail : sukhpt&Esukhjitgroup.com
Website www sukhjitgroup com

{1y Sukhjit Starch Mills
Armour Road, Mubarak Magar,
Mizamabad (4. F )
Phone Ma. [084b2) 239104, 23B622
Fax Mo. {08462} 238330
E-rmail : sukhjit.starchi@grail com

fidy  Sukhjit Starch Industries
WEBIDC Growth Centre,
M.H. 34, Narayanpur,
MAALDA (W R}
Phone Mo, {03512) 263027, 263029
Fax Mo, [(03512) 263026
E-mail . sukhjitmaldatgmail .com

{rv} Sukhpt Agro Industries
Village Bathu {Gurplah)
* Tebhsil Haroll, Bistt, UMA [H.P.}
Phone Mo, {01975) 257311, 257314
Fax Na. (01975) 257312
E-mail : sukhptagro@gmatl.com

11
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H

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

{a)

L=}

(]

(d)
(2]
i)

tg)

(h)

(1]

(0

Annual Gereral Meeting
Datc, Time & Place

Fimancial ¥Year

Date of Book Closure

Dividend Payment
List.raa on Stock Exchange
Stock Code

Registrars & Share Transfer Agents

Cematerialisatioon of S$hares

Aadress for Correspandence

Distributian of Shareholding
gsan 1,320

Category Mo,

Promoters

(including 3,22,006 shares of NRI's)
Eanks, Financial nstituticns,

(et institutions ete.

Corporate Bodies

MRIS/FFls/ OCBs

General Public

Total No, of shares

12

27th suly, 2011, 10.00 A.M. at the
Registerad Office of the Company at Phagwarg

20171-200 2

Teth Juby, 2001 to 27tk Litky, 2011,
{both days inclusive)

Within Statutory pericod
Eombray Stock Cxchange
424542

The Sharc [ransfers are done by M/ Skylne
Financial Services {Pvt) Lid., 246, |5t Floo:, Sant
Maoar, Fast of Kailash, Mew (alhi Tel - 011 265812687
Fax - 01°-26812684 and apwroved by Share Tramsfer
Committes of the Company,

The Company's Eguity shares are held ar
dematerialised farm by NSDL & CDsL.

3.48,90,229 shares i.e. 47.29% of equity capital has
been derraterialised as on 31.03.11 out of which
pramaoters shares arc 14,31,247 e 33004 ara
public shares are 20,558,652 i.e. 67 463,

The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Lid.
Saral Road, Phagwara (Ph))

Ph.: (D1824) 468800, 260216, 260314
Foax - (01824} 2R1669, 262077

E-mail : sukhjit@sukhjitgroup.com
Wahsite | www SUKhjitgroup.com

of Shares Percentage
43,758,115 SH.65%

32,514 .44,
1,37,664 1.87%
21,262 0.28%
28,560,265 38.76%
73,749,820 100.00%
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o EXHE U

(k}  Mar<et Price Data : High low quotations an the Bombay Stock Cochange danng eacn month for {ae voar
AONG-2011 & performance incormparson b BSE Indesx

MARKET FRICE {R5.] " BSE INDEX
Mornth High Loww High Low
aonl, 2010 133.00 120 G0 18047 .86 17276.80
F.ay, 2010 15145 127 30 17530.86 G060, 1Y
Iune, 2000 V400 128 00 17919.62 16318.39
uy, 20140 70365 Thd DO 16237 .55 1739558
Aug., 2000 26400 183 0 18475.27 1781909
Seot., 2000 288,00 228.30 FLIE S ar 18047 12
SRR 34471 262.95 213854 45 1968 46
hainy , A7) 324 85 257.20 27108 4 18954 52
Dec, 2040 289.95 222.2% PLICV IR 19074 57
Jam 011 11£.95 Z52.60 P ET 15035.48
ok, 200 279.50 Z31.30 "HEUL G 17294 2
Marce, 20311 249,63 232.00 i ESL T 1774217

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bl st B PRERNE - Tle e af Starca ared Staock deneatiees adusley, oo edia s quite sied 2nd Bae yet o reack
poe baflaaee 1Y s es despole The Fac Eat the irdustry nas grawver ar a omuack faster rate nmoowe 200 (0AGE 0 the
Per v v leoeacecased ss af Stk andd Slerck Saveotners in the cser incustres Peococas'ta corsamption of
whorgcen Pead oy sl | less Lo A R o comaancn o the dlanas averange ol & Ko oandd AT Koy i the 15 T
drrc e et el e led Lo ineredse iny e ekl live o ten years as the indastey skbifs te kaghe caioe
I oohcs aen por capeta corsamaciae 0 starc pnperoves sabucn s ek highos oven it the neignbeansiag eooeoney
ol e v T Kgs cnereased Pom Foao<igs e 1995 Thiere s wrenl coerelabion ol suges consurmpiioe ang
PUOE T R FELIETR I a Y Emetging eiaraemies where gap Fas beea subistantia by ocoslneedd ot Lot
s b Deaeer arcwsThoe oogae comsarmiplion aod cigee growel nataronsstarch swectners co e mplion Flosecee
o o emy A1 cortiaues wtl aowade s gap ettt pree capita sugar comsamplor of 20 Kgs scareas vl
creareoee Ll TR ey iy, w0 a0 sxpenetial ooowt o comsamptiae 2 Staech S tar e ey iy sspesled e b

seany oy ieany e B Dl windy .

UFPORTUNITIES & THREATS : Stavcl sweretndrs amo S ndingg innreas g use as fow cosl alierral ve Soosausn oo
medas e eroecialy Food sed Beveraces. Bosiges, Stacch 5o cmergineg as o an enweccaenencal frieadly aliernagtive s
e b Gre ey s caliors sue b gy cAarry zags el it may sl fird it ecrcased ase inaressative apploatons sl
soetiheed ol mooegradab o plosTes Wapor cises OF Stacch and it derivalves ncluae Frocessed oo, Confectioraery,
“hocsnealioa s, Paper and Textilos, mast of wmica sre cxpectsn T arow aver TG ger ganninen i the nest fae
veertn Therw s exlrermely beee corsarmalionr of processs0 Toods o0 ina a oas ramparcd 1o the tereat snal stancdars,
wack s CxporTen o craw at a faster sate S oary bigher per capita spending on domestic Fealth care and strorg
cernans in pzper dus to wide wsage and ack of A lea cosT sulst tote e vapecled 1o provide good impetos Lo
At ey deceand for Starck & Slaron der vatives, Howevoer, rise r dMare procurcment cost may adversely atfect
the profitabalicy of the tadustey The sedict on e sugar prices mday dlso ~estrict the use of Starch made swoectnors
rrakirg waaer g more viaole substitute.
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OUTLOOK : The rompany continues to remain on the fare-front of the Starch Industry from efficiercy and produsly oy
parnt ot vigw, Bespitc cons'stent rise in input costs of Maize, Corrapny’s FRITA per Ton of Maize corsumption has
remaired high in the last may years as tne company has been able to optimize its marketing strategies ard change
prouet mix Lo absorb ns ng Maize cost and protect jts protfitability wWith multi-ocational exstence of the COMEany,
1 onas been able to derive logistic edvantages in respect of rave material procurement at low cast ard supoly af
firished goods ta the customers at lower incidence of freight. 1hs has also helped the Company to mitigate major
risks to aus irdustry due o wice fluctuatiors in Maize productionfavalatelty in the major Maice prodeceang arzes
Gt the country and other locational/geocraphical risks. The company has diversiflied producy porifola wh b o
e g continuausly expanded and ~anufactuning facilities are certidied for high quality stanaards. [ty contiruous
emphasic on consistery and good quality parametors, the compEany nas reputed clentele from civerse cictuslsial
saciors. the campany enjoys an env able gaadwill amongst its custamers with lamg term bBusiness relztonshio wrth
many leading multi naticnais/reputed Indian corporates like Dabur Indja, wrigley lndie, Perfett India, Hinoales,
Cadbury Indie, Cremuca Agro Foods Ltd., Marico, Cadila Pharmaceut cals, Serger Paints, Balarpur, @arle, Meulle
India, Ur. Reday's Laboratanes and others.

The vompany has uandertaken major cxpansion of its Malda Unit for Increasing its capacity three folds in terms o
dlarck proctuction ard addinenal facilities for manufacture of Dextrose Monohydrate and High Maltase Syrup o
waler to the wcreasing demand of the eastern sector. The project is grpected 10 be completed by end of this year
and conlrbute sgnificanty <o the turrover and profitability of the compary frem the mext yoar. Due 1o higher
caparity atilization at other locatiors, it < expected that the operations of the company wall imcrease by aver 15%
i1 the ruaning year with reasoaahble orofits.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQUACY ; The compary has an effectee Internal Cantral Systerm which
culy cemmensuratas with .13 size and nature of business The systern fully provides ensures that all the transaclions
arg properly autkerised, recorded and reported rorrectly. The Management continuously reviews the system tn
carry out various operdlions of the compary transparently, effectively and efficiently, witn due protection for the
Company’s Assets, Tre systarm alsc ensures dus compliance of all tre Acts, laws and statutary requlations as applealle
b the rompany from time to tirme.

COMPANY'S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND ANALYSIS - The %ales of the Company have increascod bath in volumes
and in value. The profitability of the company has increased by more tham 2.5 times with EFS of the SO pany
WOT<HIG Gut te Ks. 52,54 against Rs. 19.88 laul year. The company bas been assigyned the highedt rating .o PR1 {FK
dUrey for e short tesey bank facilities by W75 Credit Anawysis & Research Ltd. [CARE). The rating agency has also
assigned FR1+ (PR Cne Plus) rating te tre company's Commercial Faper programme. Si-ong emphasis has been
placed an Workirg Capital Management of the Company with siringent cantral over funds deploymert, timely
collection of customer’s autstanding and effective control over procurement of raw material. Tha campany nas
enoyed good credit rating i.e. highest health code wth its bankers over the vears. The working capital management,
in fact, derives its major strength from self generaten cash flows duly supplemented with the Capacity to have sasy
access ta the necessary cradt at competitive cosy.

RUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT INDUSTRIAL RELATIOMNS - Yaur comnpany s industrial relations conunued to
be narmonious during the year under reference. The company believas that the quality of emplovees and fevel of
matvation largely contributes te the averall success of any business cnterprise in the long run. Your campany
tondacts regular inchouse training programmes for employees, at all levels, with major thrust on maintaining high
lewvel of motivation and on leadership development proy ding good prafessional envirgnmert in arder to equip
them with necessary drive ane skill in thair respective functional areas.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT : Good expectations stated in this Management Discussion & Analysis may pe “Forward
Locking dtatements” within the mearsng of the applicable securities — |aws and regulations and future results may
be different as company's operations may be allected by change in the demand and supply, price in the domestre
and international markets, changes in Government Regulaticns, Tax Laws ar other statutes and more importantiy
production and availability of the basic raw material (Maize} which is an agriculture produce.
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DECLARATION BY THE MANAGI NG Di RECTOR

TO
The Shareholders,
The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Ltd,

Declaration by the Managing Director
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement

This is to certify that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including Executive
Directors, Non Executive Directors and Senior Management Personnel.

| LK. Sardana, Managing Director of The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Ltd. declare that to the best of my
knowledge and belief, all the members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel have
arfititied comipianee with the Cade of Conduct for the year ended 31st March, 2017,

FOR THE SUKHNT STARCH & CHEMICALS LTD.

(1.K. SARDANA)
Place : Phagwara Managing Director
Dated : 10th June, 2011

SFTIERCATE OF COMPULIANCE FROM AUDITORS AS STIPULATED UNDER CLAUSE 45 OF ih.
ISTING AGREEMENT_QE :I‘HESTOE:K EXCHANGES IN IND1A

CERTI_[:IEATE

Fio the Sharenolders,

We bave examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals
irrted fur the year ended on 21st March, 2011 as stipulated ir clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the sad
Compary with Stock Exchanges in India

The campliance of conditions of Caorporate Governance is the responsibiiity of the Managerment. Cur examination
was limited to procedures and implenientation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance
of the conditions of Corporate Governance. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statemoents of the company.

o our opimon and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certity that
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentianed
Listing Agreements.

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended 315t March, 2011, noinvestor
gricvances are pending against the company as per the records maintained by the Company and presented 1o
the Investor Services Committea,

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
eHiciency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR Y.K. SUD & COMPANY
CHARTFRED ACCOUNTANTS

(Y.K.5UD)
Place . Jalandhar. B.Com., F.C.A.
Dated : 10th June, 2071 Prop.

Memb. No. 16875
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AUDITORS" REPORT

Ta

The Members of

The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited
Phagwara

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of The Sukhijit Starch & Chemicals Ltd. as at 31st March, 2011, the
Profit and Loss Account and also the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended an that date annexed thereto.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's Management. Our respon sibility is to express
an opimon on these financial statements based on our audit.

wWe conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in india. Thaose standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit indudes examining, on a test basis, evidence SLpRrting
the amounts and disclosures in the financiat statements. An audit also includes assessing the accaunting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well a3 evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Ve believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

We report as follgws ;

1. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditors’ Report) Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of Section 237 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we give in the Annexure a statement on the
matters specified in the paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Crder.

£.  Further to our comments in Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 above ;

[a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(B} In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as appears from our examination of the books of accounts,

(c} The Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of accounts;

(d} Inour opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement of the COMMpany
comply with the Accounting Standards as referred to in Sub-section {3C) of Section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable;

{e} On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors of the company are disqualified as on 31st
March 2011 from being appointed as a Director under clause {g) of the Subssection {1} of Section
274 of the Companies Act, 15956;

{f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
said accounts, read togethar with significant Accounting Policies and MNotes forming part of accounts,
give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required, and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in india ;

L. In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of the affairs of the company as at 315t March
2011,

i In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the company for the year ended on
that date and

ii. |n the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on the date.

FORY.K 50D & COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(¥.K. SUD)

Place : Jalandhar, B.Com., F.C.A.
Dated : 10th June, 2011 Prop.

Memb. No. 16875
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AUDITORS IitEPDE?I'

ANNEXURE TO THE AULITORS REFORT .

Annexure 10 our report of even date to the Mermbers of The Suknjit Starch & Chemicals Ltd. Phagwara Reterred
to o Paragrapk * of aur report of even date.

1.

b

In respnct of s Fxeo Agsers

!aY The company has maimtained proper records showing full particulars, incduding guantitative details and
citwal un of its fived assets or the basis of available infarmation.

(b1 As por mrarmation given ta us the assets have been physically venfied by the maragement at reasorakble
inlewvals, |he aiscrepances aoticed o such venfeat' ons were not serious and have been properly dealt
with in tne books of accounts

ot Mo sapstantin part ol lixes assets have beer disposed off during the year and therctore, do not et
: F F 2 ¥
ime going concerr assumpticn.

LAl Stock of firished goods, stores. spare parls and raw materials have been physizatly versfied duneg the
cear by the BManagerment. Inour opiniar, the frequency of verification s reasonable.

(b1 1 our opinion ane accerd ng tothe nformation and explariat on given 1o s, the procedure of physical
verilication of mventories loliowed by the managemenl are reasananle and adequaie norelaticr ta the

size of the compdry ard the nature of s Business

(01 'nour opinion ang according to the informestion ana explanation given to us, the Company hus maintaned
prower records of s nvertories. The disoepances roticed on venfoation between the ohysical stacks
and the hoox recorded wera not material.

| oo rian acd according Lo the arfarmation and explanation given tor s, the Company has noither
granted ar taker any loans, secured or urscoured 1o or from the Companies, Finms or other partics coverad
F s regisler mantained under section 301 of the Companies Acl, 1950,

The Carmpany has acequate nternal control procedure commensirate with the size of the company a~dl
mature of it Busiress vt regard to purchase of stores, raw matenal noluding components, plant ard ma
chinery, eadiprent and other assets, ara fossale of goods We Fave not come aCross any major wieakrness in
ivternal control,

I wur apinier and accoed fig 1o the information and eaplanat ons gven 1o ws, NS tra rsaction nas Laken place
weith any firir o compan osie which the directors are interestec, as crvsaged under sectice 30T of Comps-
mies AT, 1956,

o apinion and according to lhe informat'on and erplandbions guwer to us, the comoany bas complicd with,
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sect on 584/5844 of the Companics
Aot 1855 and the rules framed thereunder with regard o the deposits accewted from public.

I cur cpinion, the compary has Intornal Aldit System commensurate with the size and nature of its blamess

&y rformred 1o as the Central Govt, has not prescribed the maintonance of cost recoras by the compary
Jeder section 209070 (d) of the companies Act, 1356,

(1] Accarding tothe records of the compary. the company s regu ar in depositmg wath appropr ate authores
undisputed statutary dues incduding Prowvident Fund, trveslor BEducatian and Protection FLnd, Limployees
State lnsurance, ncome tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Exdse Duty, service tax, cess and other

ratorial stalutory dues applicable 1ot
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18.
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(b} According to the information and exaplanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Cess were in arrears, as at
31st March, 2011 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢} The Excise Department has served upon the company, a Show Cause Notice for the clearance of The
Maize Starch alleging the same to be classified as Modified Starch and has raised demands amounting to
Rs.17.06 crores since 01.04.1997. The company explained that the said demands are totally bhasetess/
frivolous and has challenged the alleged demands with the Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & Haryena winch
has since stayed the operation of demand Show Cause Notice.

The company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year. The company has not
incurred any cash loss during the financial year covered by our audit or during the immediately preceding
financial year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the campany has not defauited

in repayment of dues to financial institutions, bank or debenture holders.

The company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities.

The company is not chit fund or a nidhi/Mutual benefit fund/Society. Therefore, the provisions of clause A{xini b
of the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the company.

Based on our examination of reccrds and evaluation of related internal controls, we are of the opinion that
proper records have been maintained of the transactions and contracts and timely entries have been made
therein in respect of company’s activities relating to trading/dealing in shares, securities and other investments
and these have been held by the company in its own name.

The company has not given guarantees for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions.
The term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overail examination of the Balance
Sheet of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for fong term
investment. No long term funds have been used to finance short term assets except permanent working
capital.

The company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year to parties and companies
covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Company Act, 1956.

The company has not issued any debentures during the year and therefore the question of creating security in
respect thereof does not arise.

The company has not raised any money by way to public issue during the year.

21. According to the information and explanations given to us, based upon the audit procedures performed and
representations made by the management, we report that no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

FORY.K.5UD & COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

{Y.K. SUD}

Place : Jalandhar B.Com., F.CA.
Dated : 10th June, 2011 Prop.

Memb. No. 16875
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The Sukhijit 5tarch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

BALANCE SHEET AS ON 315T MARCH, 2011

SOURCES OF FUNDS

SHAREHCLDERS' FUNDS
fa)Share Capital
{b) Reserves & Surplus

LOAN FUNDS
{a) Secured Loans
i) Unsecured Loans

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
TOTAL FUNDS

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
{a) Gross Block

SCHEDAULE NO.,

1.31.98,200

1,25,37,48,676

4514, 32 522
39 3340092

1,50,689,36,062

ASON 31.3.201
RS,

1,32,7546,876

B4.47,72,614
7.58,78,354
2,24,81,97 844

—rw

ASON31.3.2010
RS,

37,98 200}
93,172,171, 7649
1,00,55,009,969

55,21,76,641
17,14, 84,502
72,36,61,143
6,76,78,354
1,79,68,49,466

1.21,20,90,.970

() Less : Depreciation 44 64,004,000 38,09,34,5090
(c) Net Block E 1,06,05,32,053 93,21,56,37M1
(d) Capital Work In Fragress F 13,95,59,383 2,2977.064
1,20,00,91,436 95,51,33,435
INVESTMIENTS G 22.02,16,411 13.04,73,088
A, CURRENT ASSETS,
LOANS & ADVAMNCES
{a) Inventories H 59,18,50,938 57.28.88 425
{b) Surdry Debtors I 33,54,0%, 451 26,5247 335
{c)Cash & Bank Balances J 517,83, 176 1,89 08, 134
{d) Loans & Advances K 13,72,58, 718 12,22,83,36%
B. CURRENT LIABILITIES & 1.11,62,98,293 97,93,27,313
PROVISIONS
(a} Liabifities L 25.41,00,251 18,88,11,429
(b)Y Prowistons L% 3,43,08,045 7.92,72,941
Z28.84,08,296 26,830,.84,370
NET CURRENT ASSETS (A - B) _ 82,78.89.997 71.12,42.943
TOTAL ASSETS _2,24,81,97. 844 1.79,68,49,466
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS T
M.G. SHARMA SMIINDAL LK. SARDAMNA
51 Vice President & CIo Executive Director & Secretary Mo Director
A5 par pur separate report of even date
For v. K Sud & Co. 1
Chartered Accountants For Tha éi—-i-—l;i:ifj;'f_fféjh L{-u-m £ ﬂ = S.COJINDAL
Jt Gtarg Chemicals Lig, VK. SARDANA
i;ggﬂfu*:]c . . DIRECTCRS AK. SARDAMNA
b Com. F.CA Exscutive D"H:“FS‘;;MW K. SARDANA
Mermb. Mo, 16875 5K ANAND
Flace Jalandhar L VP KAPAHI

MFrated : 10th Junc, 2011
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The Sukhijit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

&

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2011

SCHEDULE NO. FGR THE YEAR

ENDED 31.3.20M11

FOR THE YEAR
ENDGED 21.3.2414

INCOME (RS.) (RS
1. Grnoss Sales M 3,53,37.58 579 2.65,51,55207
7 Icas Extise Dty M {15,04.76,345) (b,97,45 763!
3. Met Sales 3,58,32,82,234 2,58,54,08,514
4. Other Income N2 _ 1,08,24,833 73,75,421
Tota Income 3,39.41,07,067 2,549 27,870,935
EXPENDITURE - '
n. Consumplbon of Materigls 2 2,10,11,00 752 172,82, 71,660
b, Manufacinring Expenses P 349 96,08,28% 33,482,79,537
7. Payments 1o and Provisions for Ernployees i 15,41.12, 804 12.6,9% 424
3 Adrunistrative, Selling & Other Expenses " 10,84.,94,679 045 26,072
a9, linancal Charges 5 6,97 31,476 F.09 6415
it Depreciaton E _ BB3,97.430 55402470
| OTAL EXPENDITURE 2,89,96 48,430 2,40,36,5° 576
11. Profi Before Tax 49 44 58 637 18,91,33,359
12 Provison for Taxatior I
- CLrrent Tax q H3,00,000 3,85 00,
Deferred 1ax §2,00,000 62,00, Q00
10,65,00,000 4,47 00,000
i1 Profit after Tax 3B 79.5B,637 14,44,33,3549
14, Aadf{iessy Taxes Reat ng to Previous Years {1.91,620) 230764
15, Add Surplus Brought Forward 5,00,50,605 A.A49,43 275
16. Surplus Available Tor Appropriation 43,78.17.622 19,416,884, 255
17. APPROPRIATIONS
{a) Intetim Dividena 2,956,193, 280 -
[a] Fina! Dradend {Proposed) Z.95,19,280 4,47 78920
Total Dividena 5.90,38,560 443 78,920
(bY Corporate Tax on Cividend 956,91,.249 7304 7349
fr] General Roserve 30,00,00,000 9,00, 00, 1300
(d] Surplus Carricg Forward 6,90,87,513 4, 00,50 600
1%. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS r
Basic Farrunig prer Share (Rs)) 52.54 19.88
I3ituted Earring Per Share (Rs.) 5. 54 19,84
Face Yalae Per Sharo [Rs) 140040 1000
M .G SHARMA 5.M.OJINDAL K. SARDANA

ar. Wice President & CFO) Coccutive Diractor & Secratary PAcy. Carectior

Ay per anr sepatate repnrt of even aale
Far ¥. < Sud & Co,
Charereg Acocoantants

Cettihe ) Elea Tave {J.1

F # — S JINDAL
or The Sckhjit Starch & Chemisals Ltk

ol SARDANA

(KL hud)

A.Com., © A e - MEECTORS I MK BARDAMA
P'l'lz"!:l. Fxmouliva E'ifﬂl::tﬂ'l' el I = K. LARDAMS
Memhb. Mo, 1B87E K. AMAND
Place Je.andhar _ WP KARAH

Dated ; 10tk fuse, 2011

20




The Sukhijit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

p

SCHEDULES FORMING A PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 315T MARCH, 2011

AS ON 31.3.2011

ASON31.3.2010

from Directors, previous year Rs. 69,46,000/)

SCHEDULE-A RS. RS,
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHQRISED
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares
af Rs. 10/- each 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP
73,79,820 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully 7.37,98,200 7,.37,98,200
i pald up including 58,83,799 Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- each allotted as Bonus Shares
by Capitalisation of Reserves
& 7,37,98,200 7,37,98,200
SCHEDULE-B
RESERVES & SURPLUS
CAPITAL RESERVE
Capital Subsidy : 2,68,28520 2,68 28,520
Add : Received during the year 30,00 000 2,98,28,520 -
SHARE PREMIUM 87.14,450 8714450
GENERAL RESERVE
As per Last Balance Sheet 24.61,18,193 75 61,18, 193
Add : Set aside during the year 30,00,00,000 9,00,00,000
1,14,61,18,193 834,61,18,193
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT 6,90,87,513 5,00,50,806
1,25,37,48,676 93,17,11.769
SCHEDULE-L
SECURED LOANS
PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK
(i}  Cash Credit
(a} Secured against hypothecation of 39,65,14,047 38,85,03,352
raw material, stores, semi-finished
goods and finished goods
(b} Secured against Book Debts 54918475 11,99 21,500
(1}  Term Loan - 4.37,41,789
Secured against hypothecation of Plant & Machinery,
Building, other fixed assets of Gurplah unit and
Equitable Mortgage of Factory Land of that unit
45,14,32,522 55,21,76,641
i SCHEDULE-D
UNSECURED LOANS
Fixed Deposits {includes Rs. 1,25,11,000/- 21,38,85,000 16,10,94,000

Interest Payable thereon 1.31,35,327 98,78,061

(including interest payable on cummulative deposits)

Other Loans & Advances 16,63,19,765 5,12,441
39,33.40,092 17,14,84,502
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

SCHEDULES FORMING A PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 315T MARCH, 2011
AS ON 31.3.20119

AL 41.3.2010

SCHEDJLE-G

INVESTMENTS

Haoliday Hame/ Clubs

LONG TERM UN-QUOTED FLILLY FAID
1.  SUBSIDIARIES

{il
(i}
(i}

The Vijoy Steel & General Mills Co. Ltd.
2,231,800 Shares of Face Value Rs. 10/- E-Elf.l]
Sukhijit Finance Ltd, e lasges Shees
a6, 12,600 Shares of Face ‘$alue Rs. 10/- Eatih
Seott Industries Lrd, 11 Sblatar sbeied
4,730,000 Shares of Face Value Az, 10/- 2ach

2.  DOTHERS~-UMNQUOTED

()
el

{ch
()

(2]

{f)

(9}

(h]

{i]

(1}

L3

i

{m}

(o)

Mational Saving Certificates

TataCapital Ltd.

20 Non-Convertible Debertures {Prev. Year Nil)
of Faee value of Rs. 500000/ - per debenture
MIFG Canara Rakecs [nfrastructure Growth Fund
33095 4228 unrs of Face value Rs. 10 per unit
Reliance Equity Opportunity Fund

Mil {Prev. Year 174654135 wnits)

of Face value Rs. 10 per unit

UTI GILT Advantage Fund

Lang term plan - Dividend Reinvestment
BOOOOU units (Prev, year 32173215817 untis)
of Face valua Rs. 10 per unit

LITE Yearly Fixed Maturity Plan

1000000 units {Frev, Year Mil}

of Face value Rs. 10 per unit

UTI Yearly Fixed Maturity Plan

1000002 units (Prev. Year Wil)

of Face value Rs. 10 per unit

Kotak Yearly Fixed Maturity Plan

SO0000 units {Frey. Year Mil)

of Face value Rs. 10 per unit

Reliance Quant Plus Fund

735603.477 units (Prey, Year Nil)

of Face value Rs. 10 per umt

Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund

10000003 units {Frev. Year Mil)

of Face value Rs. 10 per unit

Reliance Monthly Income Plan

16R203B5 units [Prev. Year Nif)

af Face value By, 10 per unit

HOFC Monthly Incorme Plan

10649493 units (Prev. Year Wil}

of Face value Rs. 10 per unst

Rehance RSF Balancad Fund

216294784 units [Pray, Year Nil}

of Face value Rs. 10 per unrt

Reliance $mall Cap Fund

749126.529 units (Prey, Yeor Nil)

of Face value Rs. 10 per unit

HOFL Frodence Fund

26107 630 units {Prev. Year Nil}

of Face value Rs. 10 per unit

22

21,710,054
2,63,11,332

4,340,000, {00
7,750

1,03,00.473

24,00, K1

1,00.21,798
1, 040, D0, DOC
1,00, 0,000

S0.00,000
1,00,00, 000
1. GO0 000
3,50,0c,000
2, 50,00, 00

S0 00,000

75, 0,000

75,00, (K30

TOTAL

5.

65,000

7.24,21,386

14,77,30,025

22,02.16,411

RS,

65,000

21,30,054
2.63,08, 332

LN RN E LY

F.750

1.03.00,473

24 00 000

50, 00, 000

4.02,60.473

13,04, 73,088
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

)_

SCHEDULES FORMING A PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2011

SCHEDULE-H

INVENTORIES

Stores, Spares, Fuel & Other

Raw Materials [at cost or

Net realisable value whichewver is lower)
L oose Tools (at cost or

Net reatisable value whichewver is lower)

Haw Materials (Basic) {at cost or
Net reagilsable value whichever is lower)

Stock In Process {at cost or Net realisable
value whichever is lower)

Finished Goods (at cosl or Net realisable
value whichever is lower)

ASON 31.3.2011
R5.

10,69,73,730

13.31,086

4),48,57,491

4,17,20,774

3,69,67 857

59,18,50,938

SCHEDULE-I
SUNDRY DEBTORS
Unsecured Cwver Six manths
! Considered Good 39 30,250
Considered Doubtful 35,06 998
74,37.248
— Others 32,79,68,213
33,54,05,481
SCHEDULE-#
CASH & BANK BALANCES
Cash in Hand 10,83,695
Balance wiath Scheduled Banks in ;
Current Accounts 4,40,05, 764
Fixed Deposit Accounts 8,97,822
Margin Accounts 57,95,895
5,06,99 4381
5.17,83,176
SCHEDULE-K
LOANS & ADVANCES
Recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received-
Considered Good 11,03,40,076
Security/Other Deposits 1,94,90,425
Prepaid Expenses 35,22,322
Interest & Other Recoverables 39.05,895
13,72,58,718
SCHEDULE-L
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors for Goods Supphed 8,27.60,630
Sundry Creditors for Expenses 4,67,06,792
(including Directors’ Commission of Rs. 1,22, 81,153/-
previous year Rs. 46,88, 417/-)
Other Creditors 9.37,63,130
Cividend Payable 68,74, 987
Taxes payable 80,99,560
Security Deposits 94 36,617
Proviston for Taxation 22,6490 000
Less ; Income Tax in advance {21,90,31,465) 74,58,535
25.41,00,251

Z23

ASON 31.3.2010
RS.

/£,04.35,204

13,060,987

A3,42,26,11/

3,36,38,6.%

3,32,27.4494

57.28,88,425

29, 16,2599
42,52, 331

25,80,78,709
26,52,47 339

15,79.819

1,34,54,684
11,29,454
27,444,227
1,73,28,365
1,89.08,184

9,68,27,885
1,39,95,808
19,86,596
94, 73,026
12,22.83,365

6,91,50,974
3,10.85,893

7,33,95,863
44 18,869
45,256,341
58,30,261
12,81,90,000
(12,77,86,772)
18,88,11,429




The Sukhjit Starch 8& Chemicals Limited, Phagwara
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SCHEDULES FORMING A PART OF BALANCE SHEET A5 ON 315T MARCH, 2011

SCHEDULE-M
FROWVISIONMS

Propused Dividend
Corporale Tax on Dvidend
Provision {or Gratuity

SCHEDULE-N

SALES B OTHER INCOME
Slatr baes

[raxtrings & Toxtilose

]

sorbitnl

Hop-praduots

P, Salos

SCHERULE-N

EXCISE DUTY

Feriee Duty Pard

cac s Frcina Daty or Closirg Suock
Arder Twrcise Duty or Dpening Stock

SCHEDULEN 2

OTHER INCOME

Pant Received

Inrerect & Dpodend Receiwel
e, incame

P-ixt t on Gale of Assels/Urets

SCHEDULE-D
CONSUMPTION OF MATERIALS
Dpening Stock

Finisnis Goods

Fawe BMaterals (Easic)

Sk Procpss

Purchase of Basc Raw Matenals

legs - Closing Stark
Finished Goods
Rawe hWaterals (Basic)
Stowck 1n Process

Effartive Consumnption af Basic Raw Materials
Diher Baw Materials, Consumaky s & Stares

SCHEDULE-P

OTHER MANUFACTURING EXPENSES

Jowwer and Fue! & Others
Machinery Bepair
artage

FOR THE YEAR
ENPED 31.3.2011
R5.

2,95,19.280
47 88,765

323,08045

1,201,32 52,080
17 B0 86,590
1,28 65,688,063
25.51,77,243
55,27,19,055
5,79,35,543

2533758579

15,06,78,2%99
{2.70,275)
68,347

15.04.76,345

7,09 (K10
28,858,133
349,00,204
33,27, 496

1.08,24.833

3,50,18,166
L3421, 118
413,47, 5590
50,10,52,234
1,88,65,84,695

2,38,76,76,931

3,69,67 B57
d0, 48, 57,431

4,177,774

48, 35,46,122
1.90,41,30,211
19,69,69,341

36,7582, 588
2,75,89,510
46,36,191

39,98 08,289

FOR THE YEAR
FMDED 31.5.2070
R

4,42,78,420
72,54,724
2,76,39,292
7.92.72.941

76,11, 4. 364
13,40,08.517
08, BY,H, 09"
21,6127, 130
AY O G, 5

6, 78,55, 683
2.65.51,55,277

b.4/s, 34,004
8,47 7)
H1,181

b4y a5 Thi

5, 28,030
24,832,482
2837273
17 26,665
73.75,421

A016.18, 525
20.62,70,710

2 04 88 £24
246177 859
1,77,85,27,990
2,05,52,55,842

3,32,27.45%
A3,52,26,117
3,38, 38,625
H1 10,922,234
1,55 41 63615
14,41 08045
1,72.82 71 660

30, 78,50 372
216,72, 735
47,9249

32,42,75.537




The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

SCHEDULES FORMING A PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2011

SCHEDULE-Q FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31.3.2011 ENDED 31.3.2010
PAYMENTS TO & PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES RS. RS.
Salary, Wages, Bonus & Gratuity 13,29,05,384 10,87.90,430
{including Rs. 92,00,000/- to Directors
prev. year Rs. 60,80,000/-)
Cont. to PF, ESI, Superannuation & 1,08,06,832 91,71,200
Other Funds (including Rs. 7,50,000/- to Directors
prev. year Rs. 5,32,800/-)
Workmen & Staff Welfare 1,04,00,588 83,37,790
15,41,12,804 12,62,99,420
SCHEDULE-R
ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING & OTHER EXPENSES
Printing & Stationery 12,54,232 9,69,051
Professional/Legal Expenses 13,80,378 17,112,619
Directors’ Fee 1,15,000 1,30,000
Directors’ Traveiling Expenses 1,88,986 2,79.877
Travelling Expenses 1,14,75,481 91,84,136
Auditors’ Rermuneration 3,33,641 3,18,484
Rent Paid 20,111,798 19,171,031
Electricity & Water Charges 14,33,542 8,38,200
Entertainment 6,06,366 3,74.463
Postage, Telegram & Telephones 23,61,569 22,16,386
Advertisement 13,711,284 8.14,364
Subscription 5.65,108 800,353
General Charges 7.23,696 5,89,440
Insurance Expenses 24,114,295 24,79,257
Building Repair 57.28,625 39,83,471
Other Repairs & Maintenance 26,78.426 12,62,968
Commission & Brokerage 3,40,14,188 2, 73,40 960
Taxes & Other Govi. Levies & Fees 18,74,582 19,760,901
Revate & Discount 1,00,79,056 75,98,424
Charity & Donation 4,53,356 13,34 771
Carriage & Forwarding Charges 1,50,11,425 1,39,25,906
Mg. Director & Whaletime Directors’ Commission 73,68.692 28,113,050
Other Directors’ Commission 49 12,461 18,75,367
Balances Written Off/{written back) 1,38,492 (3,03,452)
10.84.94,675 8,44,26,072
SCHEDULE-S
FINANCIAL CHARGES
Interest —  On Term Loans/Depaosits 2,28,82.413 2,33,38,038
(including Rs. 8,25,871/- paid to Directors
prev. year Rs. 8,33,790/-)
- On Other Accounts 4,55,98,647 4.67,78,557
Bank Charges 12,53,416 8,59,820
6,97,34,476 7,09,76,415
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara /_

SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

10.

11.

12.

METHOD OF ACCOUNTING

The company rmamntains its financial statements on an accrual basis and 10 accardance walh the historical cost

corvertion, generally acceptad accounting practices and applicable Accounting Standards as weli as the

relevant prowisions of The Companies Act, 1956, However, certain escalat:ons/daims which are not ascertamable
or unackrowledged, are accounted for on ther being acknowledged.

FIXED ASSETS

The [ xed assots are accounted for at their original cost included duties, taxes, freight and inciderital charges

relating to their acquisition and installation, Interest or Borrowings for fieed assets acquisition and revenue

expenditure ‘rcurred for the period prier to commerdial production are considered as a part of the cost of
assets.

DEFRECIATION

Depraciation on addition 1o Plant & Machinery has been provided on a straignt line method and on othoer

fiped assets on written down value at the rates specified in Schedule X1V to the Companics A<l 1356,

Depreaation an assets added during the year has hecn prowided on pro-rata basis with reference Lo the

month of addition/finstallation.

INVESTMENTS

Invectments are valued at cost. Profit and loss are recognised as income or expenditure on their trarsfer.

Long Term lmvestrnents are stated at cost less permanent dimination, if any, in value.

INVENTORY

Raw material, stares and spares, packing matenal, companents, stack in process, finshed goods, bye prod.acts

and goods held for resale arc valued at lower of cosl and het realisable value.

EMPLOYMENT BEMEFITS

The eontribution to Provident and Superannuation tunds are accounted on actual hability basis. Gratuity

provisionsfcomtributions are made on actuarial valuation basis.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

{a) Sales are inclusive of Excise Duty wherever applicable.

(b} Income an investment from dividend/interest are recogrised on the basis of decaration or accrual
thereaf,

FOREIGN CURREMCY TRANSACTIONS

Fureigh currengy transactions relating to sale of goods are translated at the rates prevailing at the time of

cettloment of transactions. The transactions remaining unsettled as on the balance sheet date are transtated a1

the contracted rates (whera applicable} or at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the accounting year.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Experses on research & development are charged off as and when incurred,

TAXATION

{0 Browvision for current tax is made and retained in the accounts on the hasis of estimated 1ax hability as
per the applhcable provisions of Income Tax Act, 15681,

(ii] Deforred tax for timing differences between tax profits and boak profits 15 accounted for using the tax
ratec and laws that have been enacted ar substantially enacted as of the Balance Sheet date. Deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent there is reasonable certainty that these assets can be realized in
flture.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants in the nature of contribution towards capital cost of setting up projects are treated as capital

reserve. Howeyer, grants or subsidies relating to an expense item s recognized as income over the periods

necessary to match them to the costs, which it is intended to compensate.

EORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as a pant of the

cost of assets till the date of commencement of commerdial use of the asset. All other borrowing costs are

charged to the Profit & Loss Account.
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

SCHEDULE-T-I NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

A

Figures for the previous year have been recasted/regrouped wherever necessary.

Contingent Liabilities not provided for include :

(1)

{In)

Bank Guarantees issued for Rs. 126.30 lacs {(Prev. Year Rs. 113.80 lacs) in favour of West Bengal State
Electricity Board and Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board for power connection of Malda Unit
and Gurplah unit, Commissioner of Customs / Jt. Director of Foreign Trade for import of machinery
under EPCG licence and Excise & Taxation QOfficer for sale tax sunsidy of Gurplah unit,

Central Excise Duty : Disputed liabilities not adjusted as expenses in the accounts include Rs. 17.24
crores (Prev. year Rs. 15.93 crores) on account of Central Excise Duty in appeals. The major item consists
ot Rs. 17.06 crores (Prev. year 15.90 crores) excluding penalty & interest on account of the demands
raised by the Central Excise Department since 1.4.1997 against sale of maize starch disputing the
classification thereof. The company has challenged the demand before the Hon'ble High Court which
has since been stayed by the Hon'ble High Courth and the matter is sy bjdice.

Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of
advances) : Rs. 362.91 lacs (Prev. year Rs. 50.31 lacs)

Export obligation pending to be fulfiled is US$ 21,80,796.71 (Prev. year US$ 76,203 20} under the EPCG
scheme of the Central Government on account of custom duty saved against import of capital goods at

concessional rates. The average export obligation to be maintained every year is U$ 1,80,471 (Prev. year
Nil}.

Buildings of the company at Malda and partly at Phagwara are built on a leased land.

National aving Certificates of Rs. 7,750/- {Prev. year Rs. 7,750/-) are pledged to the Govt. authorities as security.

Loans and advances includes Rs. 735.02 lacs (Prev. year Rs. 645.11 lacs) due from the subsidiary companies.

Deffered tax has been provided in accordance with the Accounting Standard 22-Accounting for Taxes on
Income ssued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

An amount of Rs. 22.96 lacs had been due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro,
Small and medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as at March 31, 2011 {Previcus year Nil) and there was

no outstanding for more than 45 days to those enterprises as on that date.

Earnmngs per share : Current Year Previous Year

(a} Net profit {after tax) available for 3877.67 1467.41
Equity shareholders (Rs. in Lacs)

(b} Weighted average number of Equity Shares having face 73,79,820 73,79,820
value of Rs. 10/- each outstanding during the year (No. of shares)

(¢} Basic earnings per share Rs. 10/- each (Rs.) (a/b) 52.54 19 88

(d) Diluted earnings per share Rs. 10/- each {Rs.) {a/b) 52.54 19.88

Related Party Disclosures :

{a)

List of related parties / Relationships

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

(1) The Vijoy Steel & General Mills Co. Ltd. : Subsidiary
(1) Sukhjit Finance Ltd. ; Subsidiary
{ii} Scott industries Ltd. : Subsidiary

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

(1} Mr. i.K. Sardana
(1) Mr. K.K_Sardana
(HI}) Mr. 5.M. Jindal
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The Sukhijit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

(b} Transactions with Related Partics in the ordinary course of business :

(Figures in brackets are for the previous year)

(Amount Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Subsidiaries Key Management Relatives of Key Total
Personnel Management Personnzl
Rent Paid 4,63 463
(4.63) {4.63)
Rernunaration 192.52 41.57 234.049
_ {110.52) {36.45) (146.97)
On account of sales 0.38 0.28
{31.39) [31.39) |
Oin account of Purchases 131.96 131.94
(151.20) £151.20)
Rent received 0.54 0.34
(0.84) (G.84}
20010-11 200910
10. [a] Managerial Remuneration paid/payabie to the Manager {s) : {Rs.} (Rs.}
(i} Salares 92,00,000 RO, B0, 00
fii} Commission 73,608,692 28,13,050
{ii} Contribution to retirament benafit tunds 7,50,000 5.32.800
(iv} Perguisites 19,313,198 16,26.723

{h) Computation of Net Profit u/s 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 for computation of Commission ta

CHrectars .
Net Profit as per Profit & Loss Account 49.44,58,627 18,91,33,359
Add - Commmission 1o Directars 1,22.81,153 46,88,417
Drirectors Sitting Fee 1,15.000 1,230,000
50, 68,54, 790 19,39.51,776
Less ; Profit on sale of Assets/Shares 33,27 4% 17.26,E665
Balance : 50,35,27.294 19,22,25,111
Commission @ 1% on Wet Profits to Directors 49,12,46% 18,75.367
Commission @ 1.5% on Net Frafits to Mg, 73,68,692 28,113,050
Director, Jt. Mqg. Director & Exe, Director
Net Profit Fram business [as per Section 342) 49,12 46,141 18,75,36,604

SCHEDULE =T-11 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO PARAGRAFPHS 3 TO 4D OF PART Il OF

SCHEDULE V1 YO THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

201011 2009-10

1.  ALDITORS REMUNERATION INCLUDES ! Rs. Rs.

Audit Fee 2,00,000 2,00,000

Tax Audit Fes 42,000 42,000

For Other Matters - -
Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 91,641 * 76,484 *

{*} Including service tax on Audit fee
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

2. EARNINGSIN FORE!GH EXCHANGE
(i} Expert of goods on F.O.B. basis 1,78, 78,171 2.60.83 653

1 VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.ILF. BASIS
(excluding canalised itermns)
(i1 Raw Materials and Consumakles 023,758 29,73,431
(i} Capital Goods 36,18,638 24,53,962

4. EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CUHRRENCY
Remnittance in foreign cLrrancy
{a) Foreign Travelling Expenses 3.,90,653 104,115

S LICENSED, INSTALLED AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION
l. Licensed Capacity
Al the units of the Company are separately registered with S14, Govt. of India and combined licenced
capacities are:

{a) Maize Starch 185000 MTs.

(b} Glugose 122300 M Ts.

{c} Sorbitol 12000 MTs,

() Dextrine & Textilose 21200 MTs.

. Installed Capacity 201011 {P.A) 2009-10 (P.AL)
(2} Starches 165000 M.T. 135000 M. T.
(b} Glucose 107000 M.T. 48000 M.T.
(<) Sorbitol 12000 M.T. 12000 M.T.
(d) Dextrine & Textilose 12000 M.T. 10250 M. T.

. Actual Production

fa) Maize Starch 122987 392 M.T. 1050949, 586 M.T.
Less © Captive Consumption 65953717 M.T. 62069411 M.T.
Production for sale 50033675 M.T. 43030175 M.T.

{b] Dextrine & Textilose 6630.125 M.T. RO33.425 M.T.

(c} Glucose 51207.840 M.T. 47763155 M.T.

(d} Sorbital 8136.650 M.T. 7716105 M.7.

(e} By Products on dry basis 45064297 M.T. 30788 815 M. T,
Lass : internal Consumption 1332360 M.T. 1459. 810 M.T.
Production for sale 43731.937 M.7. 38329.005 M.T.

6. CONSUMPTION OF RAW MATERIALS 2010-11 2009-140

{including Sales, if any) Oty. in Value in Qty. in Value in

M.Tons Rs. M. Tons Rs.

(i) Maize 192560570  1,90,76,16,551 165798800 1,52,19.72375

(i) Tapioca Starch and other 321.000 £3,94,170 1267 350 280 50,208
hasic Raw Materials

{iii} Other items {#ach being less than 19,69,.69,941 - 15,40,62.813

109 of the total consumption]

2.11,29,80,662 1,70,49,85 396
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The Sukhijit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

SCHEDULE 'T-II" NOTES ON ACCDUNTS
7. VALUE OF IMPORTED AND INDIGENOUS

@_

RAW MATERIALS, SPARE PARTS AND 201011 2009-10
PERCENTAGE OF EACH TO TOTAL CONSUMPTION {Rs.) {Rs.}
(i} Raw Matenials
ja) Imported - 26,68,696
fexcluding cannalised iterns) - {D.16%)
{b) Indigenaous 2.11.29 80 662 1,70,23,16,700
{100%) (99.84%}
{ii) Spares & Components 9,23.758 3,04,73%
(a} Imparted {2.34%) (1.52%)
2.67,07,202 1,97 40 497
(b} Indigenaus [26.66%) {98 48%)
8. PARTICULARS GF GOQDS S0LD 2010-11 2009-10
Qty. in Value in Jty. in Walue my
M. Tons Rs. P, Tons Rx.
{1 Starches 55798.925 1.20,32,52,080 43371.5(0 # F6,11,14,364
(i} Dextrins & Textilose 6542.525 17,80.86,590 B115.150 &8 134008912
Cind Glucose 51062.120 1.28.,65,88,068 48311625 948,89 53 (U5
(ivd Sobitol 8203115 25,51, 77,243 FAI2175 21,61,27.130
fwy By Products on dry basis 44262.155 ~ CL.27.19,055 AWFERTIE An, A0.66,0%3
[w1] Misc. Sales 5,79,.35 543 B, /8,55, 683
3,53,37,58,579 2,65,%1,5%5,2 77
# includes Mil MTs Maize Starch purchased from outside {(Prev. Year 269,700 M15)
# includes MNil MTs Yellow Dextrine purchased from ouatside (Prev. Year 4,150 MIs)
*inchudes 321.000 MTs. Gluten purchascd from outside {Prev. Year 553,000 MTs)
9 OPENING AND CLOSING STOCK OF
GOODS PRODULCED DURING THE YEAR
As on 31.3.2011 Ason 31.3.2010 Axan 31.3.7009
Cy. in Value in Oty. in Walue in Oty 10 Value in
M. Tons Rs. M.Tons Res. M. Tons Rz,
(i) Starches F2e.200 116,721,664 493 450 6% 684973 565675 68,66, 391
{ii) Dexlrins & Textiose 156,900 2647078 53.300 10,02,032 246675 32,184935
(i) Glucoswe 743.800 1,37.90,560 5O8.0BC 93,710,983 1149.550 1,638,539 338
frv) Sorbitol 192.805 4297168 259270 54,560,095 275 340 f0,32147
(v] By Products on dry basis 209,342 39,29 837 413560 1,04,85409 305.283 76,41,710
M.G. SHARMA S.MOJINDAL LE.SARDANA
Sr. Vice President & CFO Executive Qirector & Secretany Ma. Director

A5 per our saparate report of even date
For ¥ K. Sud & Co,

Chartered Arcauntants — LCJINDAL
17 K. Sud) VoK SARDANA,
E.Com, FLA. DIRECT GRS AN SARDAMA,
:::I‘F?I‘:Itl Mo 18875 KK SARDANA
Place:._llala.r'.dhar 5K ANAND
Dated: 10 hyne, 2011 — W.F KAPAHI
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicails Limited, Phagwara

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2011

e

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2011 3t March, 2010
FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {Rs. in facs) [As im bacy}
Met Profil before tax 4,544,505 1,891.33
ADJUSTMENTS FOR NON-CASH ITEMS
Depreciation Bk Y 594 02
IProvwinion for gratuty - 3157
ADJUSTMENTS FOR NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Imterest & Dividenad received [25.83) {22.83)
Interest pand bad 81 o117
{Profit) Less on sale of investrments/assets [34.27) {(17.27)
FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE 6.231.21 3171949
WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL
frade and gther receivables (Bhd. hb) [679.10)
Imvvanlories {189.61) {2,279.43)
T ade Payanle 495 48 (13111
CHher Liabilitiag {1903 03] 36554
FLOWS FROM QRERATING ACTIVITIES o493 98 45397
Direc] Taxes Pad (970.25) (337.30)
NET FLOWS FROM DFERATING ACTIVITIES 4,523.73 116.61
FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fieed Assets (3,119.47) {1,183.40)
Cale af Fixed Assets 29,18 17.99
(Mher Imvestmcnts {B97.43) 22080
interes! & Dwedend received 28,58 22483
MET FLOWS FROM [NVESTING ACTIVITIES {3548.83) [915.78)
FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Laans raised Tar warking capital (57003} 2199230
Term Loans raisecd fa1r44 (445 .50)
Cher Loans raised 221856 { 10:.05)
Dividends paid {772.45) (224 B2h
Interest paid {LBA.ET) (70114
NET FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1246.15) B03.26
Met Cash Flows during the year 328.75 [195.41}
Cash & cash sgquivalents at beginming of the year 189.08 38440
iZash & rash equivarents at the end of the year 51783 185.08
M.G. SHARMA S-M_JINDAL .. SARDANA
51. Wice Presiaent & CFO Execulive Director & Secretary Mg. Director
As per aur separate repart af even date

Chartered Arcauntants

0L Sucd)

B.Com., FOA.

Prop.

tamibb. Mo, 16875
Place : lalandhar
Cated - 10th June, £011
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The Sukhiit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara @f

SCHEDU LES TC THE A_CCDLJNTS

SCHEDRLUIE L
BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE AS PER PART (1V) QF SCHEDULE
VI TO THE COMPARNIES ACT, 19546,

AEGISTRATION DETAILS
Corporate [dentity NMurmber L1532 1PE1944PLLC001925 State Code : 16
Ealance Sheet Date 31.3.20117

CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR {Amount in Thousands)

Public Issue - Right Issue -

Bonus Issuoe - Frivate Placemant -
Promoters Contribotion -

PO%ITION OF MOBILISATION AMO DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS {Amaount in Thousands)

Tatal Liabilities Rs. 22,48 193 Tortal Assets Rs. 22,458,198
SOURCE OF FUNLDYS

Paid-up Capital Rs. 73,7958 Reserves & Surplus Fs. 12,593,749
Secured Loans Rs. 4,511,433 Unsecured Loans R 3,93.340
Creffered Tax Liability Rs. 75,878

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

et Fixed Assels Rs. 1200092 Iy estment Rs, 220,716
Met Carrent Assets Rs. 8,27 830

Accumulated Lasies Rs. Wil

v, PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY (Amount in Thousands)
TuImover Rs. 3544,5%841 Total Expenditure Rs. 30,5125
Profit/ (L 0ss) before Tax Rs.  4,94,455 Profit/{Loss} after tax Rs. 387,767
Earning Per Share Rs. o254 Chvidend Rate 80%

V. GENERIC NAMES OF THREE PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS,/SERVICES OF COMPANY [As per monetary terms)
ltern Code No. 110812, 170230, 350510, 280544, 151521
Product Description Matze Starch, Ligquid Gilucose, Dextrose Monohydrate, Dextrins,

sorbital, Dextrose Anhydrous, Maize Oil & Other By products.
M.G. 5SHARMA 5M_JINDAL I.K. SARDANA
SroWice President & CFO Executive Direcior & Serretary fAg. Directar

— 5.CIINDAL
| W.K.SARDANA
AK. SARDANA
KK SARDANA,
5.1 ANAND
WP KAPAHI

CIRECTORS
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The Sukhjit 5tarch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS” ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

AUDITOR™S REPDRT TO THE BOARD GF DIRECTORS” ON CONSGLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE SUKHNT
STARCH & CHEMCALS LTD.

We have examined the attached consolidated Ealance Sheet of The Sukhpt Starch & Chemucals Ltd. and its
subsidiares as at 215t March, 2011, the consohdated Profit and Loss Account and the cansolidated cash flow
statement for the year ended on that date.

Thesze financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an apirmon on these financial statements based on our audit.

e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance gbout whether the financial staterments
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporling the amaunts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit alio includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the averall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit prowides a2 reasonable basis for cur apinion.

We did not audit the finanaal statements of subsidianes whose financial staterments reflect total assets and 1otal
revenues 3s follows as on 31st March, 2011

Subsidiary Company Total Assets Tatal Revenues
fin lacs) {in lacs)

The Yijoy Steel & Genaral Mills Co. Ltd. £31.94 148,40

Sukhyit Finance Lid. 185.31 1.13

Seott Industries Ltd. 1031.51 47775

We report that the consolidated financial statepnents have been prepared by the Company in accordance with
the requirements of Accounting Standard 21-Consolidated Financal $tatements issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and on the basis of the separate audited finanaal statements of The Sukhjit Starch &
Chemicais Limited and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements.

{n the basis of infermation and according to explanations given to us and on the consideration of the separate

audit reports on individual audited financial statements. The Sukhjit 5tarch & Chemicals Limited and its afaresaid

subsidianies, we are af the opinion that in case of Balance sheet, of the state of the affairs of the company as at

315t March 20171,

i.  The consolidaled Balance Sheet gives a true and fair view ol the Consolidated state of affairs of The Sukhjit
Starch & Chemicals Limited and 1ts subsidranes as at 315t harch, 2011.

i. The consolidated profit and loss account gives a true and fair view of the consolidated results of operations
of The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited and its subsicianes for the year then ended and

ii.  The consolidated cash flow statement gives a true and fair view of the consolidated rosults of aperations of
The sukhijit Starch & Chemicals Limited and its subsidiaries for the year then ended in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

FOR Y.K. SUD & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,

(¥.K. SUD)
Place : Jalandhar 8.Com., F.CA.
Dated : 10th June, 2011 Prop.

Mermb. Mo, 16875
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31T MARCH, 2011

SOURCES OF FLUNDS SCHEDULE
N,
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS
[a) Share Capital Fi} 7,37.958,7040
{3} Roserves & Surplus B 1,22,34,79.14%

MINORITY INTEREST

LOAN FUNDS
(A} Sercured Loans C
(oY dnsecured Loans O

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
TOTAL FUNDS

APPLICATON OF FURDS
FIRED ASSETS

[a} Gross Block
(I3 Dess e proccaion

45,495,32,742
39,33,40.091

160,702,117, 2433
49 98,394,554

AL ON 31.3.2011

Rs.

1,297271 349
12,1288

B5,28,72,873
7,26,90, 94

2,22,40.51,4714

ASOMN 31T.3.2010

757,581,200
31,00 49 849

56,04,38,374
17.14,84, 503

41.05,40, 4486

A3.00,50,19%

Fis.

98,47,48,049
14,57,224

73,0922 887
6,425 808

1,78 23, 80,863

P01 Less o Lease [oal satian 14,530,005 14.30,005
fa) Net Black E 110, 56, Bh, A F4 SR LR R
foY Capital Work o Progress F 14,4245 998 276,07 678
1,24,99,36, 772 1,.00,67F,27,920
INVESTMEMNTS (3 15,79,44,. 552 B81, 3% 206
Less Prowvisions (64 35 006} 15,15,09.546 {51,488 005) B, 29 87 205
A. CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
12) Inventcnes H 83,6310, 345 GO, 08 2 255
{1 Sundry Deblars I 37,27 BB 6T 30,43, 20,847
ic) Cash & Bank Balances ; 3,249,358 494 2,09 90 545
id) Loans & Advances K 742,599,594 BES10E71
(e] Less: Frovision for Sub Standard Assets {55,27 B30 (44,22271)
1,13,08,09 CRS 99,92, 88,200
B. CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
{ad Liahilitics L 27,1207 450 20,49,69.445
fh) Proovisions WY 3,70,02 473 B,16,53,013
30,8203 529 2a.66 A2 458
MNET CURRENT ASSETS (A — B) 82.26,05,1536 71,2665 B42
TOTAL ASSETS 2.22,40,51.474 1.78.23,80,963
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS T
M.G. SHARM A, 5.0, JINDAL LK. 5ARDANA
SroVice Presidant & CFO) Executive Dirertor & Secretary Wlg. Directar
A5 per our separate repart of even date
Foar &% K. Sud & Ca. — %.CIINDAL

Chartered Accountarnits Vo SARDAMNA

{r K. sud) DIRECTORS A K SARDANA
B.Com., F.C.A. KK SARDANA
Proga K. ANAND
hernl. Mo, 16875 :_ VP KAPAHI

PFlace : lalandhar
Crated : 1th Jane, 2011
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The Sukhjit Starck & Chermicals Limited, Phagwara

CONSQLIDATED PROFIT & LOS

S ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2071

SCHEDULE NGO FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31.3.2011 ENDED 31.3.2011)
INCOME [Rs.) [Rs.)
1. Gross S%ales & Other Income M 3.60,49,13,633 2,74, 55,65 634
Lass Excise Duty M1 15,08,12,3145 BEO7.45 763
Metl Salos 3,45.41,01,287 L6758 1% 871
TOTAL INCOME 1,45 41 07,787 2,67,538 1% 81
EXPENDITURE
2. Cormumption of Materidls 0 2132 4681 816 1.57.2%91,513
i Manufacturing Fapenses P 41,14,97,312 35,10,13 659
4. Payments to and Provisions for Emplovess 3 16,67,65,902 13,90, 58,567
3. Admninistrative, Selling & Other Expenses H 1%.20,16,202 8,73.54,005
B, Financal Charges 5 7,10,23,112 1.79.82 562
7o Deprociaton L 7.07.,98,125 £,37, 14,488
B Provision for Sub-Standard Assets 2392 560 28,946,347
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 2,96,91,77,038 248,490,117, 332
9. Prefit Betore Tax 48,49 74,749 18,68, 08,5 1%
T8 Provis an for Taxationr
— Current Tax {9.83,00,001) (385 00,000
-Neferred Tax {84,38,156) {72,12.022)
11. Protit after Tax ir.81.86,093 14 10,25 517
12, Add/{l ess) Taxes Relating to Previous Years - 2307621
13, Profit after Tax before dMinarty tnterests 37.81,86093 14, 374,04,148
14 (Addifl oss Minorty Inte-ests [2,61,936) (7,20,995)
15 Met Protit 37,84 48 029 14, 36,7%,134
16 Add Surplus Brought Fornaarg 58.14,.3R% 48,22 T4
14 bharplus dvailabe for Appropnation i8.52.62 418 14, 84,48, 038
Wealth Tax paid 191,620 -
(Al Intenm Dvidend 295 19,280 A4 08 820
(o} Final Cividend [Proposed) 2,95.19,280 -
Tatal [iv-dend 5.90,38,560 442, 8,940
ic) Corpoarate Tax on Diwvidend 96,291,549 73,504,723
(] General Reserve 30,00,00,000 9,00.00 000
{d) Surplus Carriea Forward 1.63.40.689 b, 1d, 385
18, NOTES ON ACCOUNTS T
Rasic Earning cer Share {Ra.) 51 3% 19.14
Diluted Eamning Per Share (Rs.) 51.25 19.43
I"ace Value Per Share {Rs.) 1000 10.00
M.G. SHARMA 5.M_JINDAL LE. SARDANA

MELver Proosicdenl & CEO

A per aur separate repor of @ven date
Far vk Sl & Co
Thearared Acoountants

K S

A.C0m., F O

P

PAcmby. M 16525
Fiare Ja.andhar
Mated 10tk Jure, 2011

Exceuatior Dhractor & Secrezary

CIRECTORS

36

Mo Thrento:

— .0 NIA

WOR L SARTIARA,
MR SAEDANA
K E SAaRDAaNA
S5 K AMNAMD
v KalraH|




The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

U

“UHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

~CHEDULE-A

sHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

1,00,00,000 Equity Shares

of Rs. 10/- each

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP
73,79,820 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/
Each fully paid up including
08,83,79% Equrty Shares of Rs. 10/-
each allotted as Bonus Shares by
Capitalisation of Reserves

SCHEDULE-B

RESERVES & SURPLUS

CAPITAL RESERVE

As per Last Balance Sheet

Add/{Less)  an Consolidation of Accounts
Add : Received during the Year

SHARE PREMIUM
As Per Last Balance Sheet

GENERAL RESERVE
As per Last Balance Sheet
Add : Set aside during the year

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

SCHEDULE-C
SECURED LOANS
PUMNIAB NATIOMAL BANK

i) Cash Credit

A5 ON 31.3.2011

4,93,02,817
3,000
30,000,000

84,61,18,193
30,00,00,000

TOTAL

(a) Secured against Hypothecation of raw material, stores,

semi-finished goods and finished
(b} Secured against Book Debts

(n) Term Loan

goods

>ecured against hypothecation of Plant & Machinery, Building
Other Fixed Assets of Gurplah Unit and
Equitable Mortgage of Factory Land of that unit

SCHEDULE-D
UNSECURED LOANS
Fixed Deposits

interest Payable thereon

({Including interest payable on cummulative deposits)

Other Loans & Advances/Security Depaosits

wOBEDLEF

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Building under construction
Machinery under construction
Advances for capital goods
Furmiture

37

TOTAL

Rs.

10,00,00,000

#,.37.,98,200

7,37,98,200

5,23,05,817

87,14,450

1,14,61,18,193
1,63,40,689

1,22,34,79,149

40,06,14,254

5,78,78,998

10,39,530

45,95,32,782

21,38,85,000
1.31,35,327

16,63,19,764

39,33,40,09

2,31,02,904
74208133
4,69,38,961

14,42,49,998

ASON31.3.2010
Rs.

10,00,00,000

7,37,98,200

/,37,98,200

4,93,02,817

4,93,02,817

87,14,450

75,61,18,1583
9,00,00,000
84,61,18,193

b8, 14,389
91,093,49,849

39,41,83,657

12,25,12,933

4,37,41,789

56,04,38,379

16,10,54,000
98,78,061

5,112,442
17.14,84,503

&1,46 946
1,70,29 454
22,35,540
22, /38
2,76,67,678




The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE-G AS ON 31.3.2011 ASON 31.3.2010
INVESTMENTS Rs. Rs.
Heliday Home/Clubs 65,000 65,000
LONG TERM UN QUOTED FULLY PAID
OTHERS
No.of Face Value
Shares/  PerShare/
Debenture/ Debenture/
Units  Units {Rs.)
(a) National Saving Certificates - - 7.750 71,750
(b) Tata Capital Ltd. 20 500,000  1,03,00,479 1,03,00,479
Non Convertible Debentures (20)
() NIFG Canara Robacce Infrastructure 930954228 10 24,00,000 24 00,000
Growth Fund (93095.4228) 10
(d) Reliance Equity Oppurtunity Fund {NIL) ~ 50,00,000
(1,74,654.1850) 10
(e} UTI Gilt Advantage Fund 80,000 10 1,00,21,7%6 4,02,60,473
Long term Plan-Dividend Re-Investment {3217321.591) 10
{f} UTi Yearly Fixed Maturity Plan 10,00,000 10 1,00,00,000 —
{NIL)
{g) UT! Yearly Fixed Maturity Plan 10,00,000 10 1,00,00,000 -
NIL
(h) Kotak Yearly Fixed Maturity Plan S,Dé,ﬂﬂé 10 53,00,000 —
(NIL)
{iY Rehance Quant Phus Fund 7.35,603.477 10 1,00,00,000 —
(NIL)
(j Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund 10,004,000 10 1,00,00,000 —
(NiL)
(k) Reliance Monthly Income Plan 16,30,385 10 3,50,00.000 —
(NIL)
{Il} HDFC Monthly income Plan 10,94,993 10 2,50,00,000 —
(NIL)
(m)Rehance RSF Batanced Fund 2,16,294.784 10 50,00,000 —
(NIL)
{n) Reliance Small Cap Fund 7,49 126.529 10 75,00,000 —
(NIL)
(o} HDFC Prudence Fund 36,107.630 10 75,00,000 -
(NIL)
(p) 70152 shares of Rs. 10/- each of 316000 10 85,80,008 85,80,008
M/s Hindustan Engineering & Industries Ltd. {316000) 10
and 245848 shares of Rs. 10/- each of
M/s. Malanpur Steel Ltd. issued in lieu of
316000 shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up of
M/s. Hindustan Development Corp. Ltd. at cost
{q) M/s. Santosh Securities Ltd. 5,000 1,75,000 1,75,600
(5000} 10
15,64,85,033
QUOTED FULLY PAID
{a) M/s Sanghi Polyester Ltd. 4,500 10 26,430 26,430
(4,900}
{b) Reliance Industries Lid. 300 10 11,756 11,756
{300)
(c) M/s PTL Enterprises Ltd. 5,000 10 1,206,274 1,26,274
(5,000)
(d} Mfs Tele Data Informatics Ltd. 29,122 10 11,38,643 11.38,643
(29,122)
6761 shares of M/< Tele Data Marine Ltd.
6761 shares of M/s Tele Data Technalogy Ltd.
(e) M/s. TT Ltd. 3,625 10 43,392 43,392
(3,625)
{f) Tata Tele Services Ltd. 2,000 48024
{NIL) 13,94,519
{Market value of quoted investments
Rs. 6.57 lacs Previous year Rs, 4.03 |acs) 15,79,44,552 6,81,35,206
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The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

/“x_

SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE-H

INVENTORIES

Stores, Spares, Fuel & Other

Loose Tools (at cost or

net realisable value whichever is lower)
Raw Materials {(Basic) {at cost or

net realisable value whichever 1s lower)
Stock in Process {at cost or

rnet realisable value whichever is lower)

Finished Goods {at cost or

net realisatle value whichever is lower)

SCHEDULE-}
SUNDRY DEBTORS
Unsecured - Over Six months
- Cansidered Good
- Cansidered Doubtful
- QOthers

Less Prowvision for Doubtful Debts

SCHEDLULE-)

CASH & BANK BALANCES

Cash in Hand

Balance with Scheduled Banks in—
Current Accounts
Fixed Depasit Accounts

Margin Accounts

SCHEDWUJLE-K

LOANS & ADVANCES
Recoverable in cash or in kind or

for value to be received

- Considered Good

- Considered Doubtful
Secunty/QOther Deposits
Prepaid Expenses

Interest & Other Recoverables

AS ON 31.3.2011
Rs.

10,75,12,316
13,31,086
42.28,60,511

5,51,08,29%

4,94,98,133

63,63,10,345

2.45,62,288
1,78,95,599
334495812

37,69,53,999
{41,65,838)

37,27.88,161

15,38,880

4,47,05,897
897,822
57,95,895

5,29,38,494

3,91,50,751
73,79,292
2,03,41,664
35,22,322
39,05,895

7,42,99.924

39

ASON 31.3.2010
Rs.

11,1112
13,60,987

44 74,75 524

432,91 695

4,66,48,937

60,98,88,255

35,35,3497
1,.96,87 593
28,48,20,385
30,80,43 385
(37,22,538)
30,43, 20,847

19,28, 206

1,51,88,708
11,29,459
27,44,222
2,09,90,5385

3,48,02,226
74,27,867
1,48,21,159
19,86,596
94,73,026
6.85,10,874




The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

SCHEDUILE-L

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lundry Craciters for Goods Supplied
Surdry Creditors Tor Fraenses

Other Credilo-s

Cividend Pavable

Taxes payable

Arcurity Cepatats

Prowision For Taxation

cess s Income Tax in Advance

SCHEDULEM
PROVISIONS

Froposed Dividened
Carporate Tax on Dudend
Prowision Tar Gratuty

SCHEDULE-M

SALES & OTHER INCOME
tales

Prezfit on Sae of Assely/LIits
Rzt Recaived

interesl & Dvidend Recenard
Misc. Incame

SCHEDULE-N 1

EXCISE DUTY

Exise Duty Pand

Less : bxcise Duty on Closing Stock
Add - Excise Duty on Guenmg 5tock

SCHEDLULE-Q

CONSUMPTION OF RAW MATERIALS
DPENIMNG STOCK

Finished Goods
Raw Materials {Baic)
Sipck in Process

Purchase of Basic Raw Matenals

LESS CLOSING STOICK
Finished Goodsy
Faw Materialy (Bacic)
Steck in Proces:

FRective Consuription of Basic Raw Matenals

Other Raw Malerials, Consurmak a5 &
qraros Corsu miesd

ASONA1.3.2011
Hs.

4.50.26,19:
5,00,27,031
9,53.94,331
5R.74,987
B0,9%,560
94,356,617

22, 54,90, 000
(21,91.47,272)

27.12,01,450

2.95,15,280
47.88,765
6,894,434

3.59.40 63,017
34,05, 3%

6, 25,000
29.00.233
39.19,457

3.60.49,13,623

15.10,14,300
(2,70.276)
68,322

15.08,12,348

4,89,39,611
Ad 74,75,525
4,10,01,020

53 74,16.156

1,92,10,49,533

2,45 84,565,689

4,494, 898,133
42 28,680,511

52.74.66,343

1,93,05,98,748
20,.36,85,070

2,13.46,43, 316

40

4,95 74,008
21,3502 607
291,972,175

4,66,48,937
44,74, /5,524

4,329,695

A5 OM 31.3.2070
Rs.

007 23 BET
3,07 65,54 ¢
794,08, 120

A4, 8,BRY
45, 3% 341

E, 30,761
128200712
(42,79,06,931°

d 12 78520
7354, 420
3,00.19, 464

P A B R R
17,26, kRS
444,000
2292433
3193614

6,57.32,904
(BB,222%
81,1481
6,975,456

0,482,735, 740
1.82,94, 76,002
2,13,3749,752

B4, 74,160,156

1,59.64, 33,636
17.66,57.B77

VAT ERA150E




The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

A5 0N 31.3.2011

ASON31.3.2010

SCHEDULE-F s, Rs.

OTHER MANLUFACTURING EXPENSES

Powoer & Fue 36,99,07.71 30,9404 531

rAachinerny Repair 2,58,04,072 2,00,34.740

Cartage 46,83,502 44,456,855

Other Charges 1.10,01,967 1.66.25125
41,14,97,312 35, 10013655

SCHEDULE=Q

PAYMENT: TO & PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES

Salary, Wages, Borus & Gratuity 14,43 87 683 12,06,27.308
Cont. to PP, ES:, Suporannuat on & Other Funds 1.16.42.4.23 B8.50824
wWorkmen & Staff welfare 1.07,35,795 B5,80,430
16,67,65,902 13,90, 58, 562
SCHEDULE-R - -
ADMIMNISTRATIVE, SELLING & OTHER EXFENSES
Frirstinig & S1aticrery 13,122,587 10,313,549
Frofessional/Legal Expernwas 1580578 14,1700
Directors’ Fee 1,715,001 1,303,000
Directars' Traveling Expanses 7.88,986 A RF
Travelling Experses 1.21,02,873 G460 473
Auditors' Remuneration 4,086,511 3,749,434
Fcat Paid 20.11,798 19,117,031
Electrnioity & Water Charges 14,33,542 B, 38,200
Ertertainmont 6,34, 226 3,593,566
Postage, Telegram & Telgpnanes 2659 118 24,98,652
Acdvartizameant 13,590,814 g 24, 26d
SubscorenaTiIn 5.65,108 8,014,851
Gareral &l ges 8,05 838 b, 35,246
Insurance Expanses 25,94 235 26,43 408
Builaing Repa'r 57,218,625 19444
Cther Repairs & Maintenance 29,712.497 18,4547
Corrmission & Brokerage 24543412 £, 03,40, S0
Taxes & Other Gowt. Levies & Fees 15,27.082 20,13,085
Aebate & Discount 1.00,79,056 7600157
Charity & Donation 4,67,056 13,4181
Carriage & Forwardirg Charges 1,56,30,905 14505816
hg. Director & Wholetime Directars” Camm, 73,68, 692 25 13,050
Directars’ Commissian 45,12 461 18,75,267
Bad Debts Written Off 1,38,492 -
Frovision for Baddebis 4,431,304 -
11.20,16,202 8,73,54,005
SCHEDWLILE-S - -
FINAMNCIAL CHARGES
Imterest — On Term Loansy/Depasits 22882412 2,13 38,038
~ (0 Other &wccounts 4.67.10,565 4.76,98, 104
Bark Charges 13,50.200 9,45 420
ire Purchase Charges 79,930 -

41

F10,23.112

71,1382 562
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The Sukhijit Starch & Chemicals L

SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
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The company maintains its financial statements on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical cost convention,

generally accepted accounting practices and applicable Accounting Standards as well as the relevant provisions of The

Companies Act, 1956. However, certain escaiations/claims which are not ascertainable or unacknowledged, are accounted

tor on their being acknowiedged.

U

The fixed assets are accounted for at their original cost included duties, taxes, freight and incidental charges relating to their

acquisition and installation, Interest on borrowings for fixed assets acquisition and revenue expenditure incurred for the

period prior to commercial production are considered as a part of cost of assets.
b Lt TN

(a) Depreciation on additions to Plant & Machinery has been provided on a straight line method and on ather fixed assets
on written down value at the rates specified in Schedute XIV tc the Companies Act, 1956. Depreciation on assets added
during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/installation.

(b} Depreciation on the leased assets has been provided on straight line basis at the rates specified under Schedule X1V of
the Companies Act, 1956 on pro-rata basis, with reference to the month of addition/installation. A lease equalization
account has been created representing the difference between annual lease charge and statutory depreciation as per
the guidelines issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, in this regard.

Investments are valued at cost. Profit and loss are recognised as income or expenditure on their transfer. Long Term
Investment are stated at cost less permanent diminution, if any, in value.

Raw matenals, stores and spares, packing material, components, stock in process, finished goods, bye products and goods
held for resale are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

SoLLrL
The contribution to Provident and Superannuation Funds are accounted on actual liability basis. Gratuity provisions/
contributions are maae on actuarial valuation basis.
(@) Sales are inclusive ot Excise Duty wherever applicable.
(b} Incorme oninvestment from dividend/interest are recognised on the basis of declaration or accrual thereof.

Foreign currency transactions relating to sale of goods are translated at the rates prevailing at the time of settlement of
transactions. The transactions remaining unsettled as on the balance sheet date are translated at the contracted rates {where
applicable} or at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the accounting year.

RS

Expenses on research & development are charged off as and when incurred.

(1} Provision for current tax is made in the accounts on the basis of estimated tax liability as per the applicable provisions
of income Tax Act, 1961,

{1} Deferred tax for timing differences between tax profits and book profits is accounted for using the tax rates and faws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted as of the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent there s reasonable certainty that these assets can be realised in future.

Grants in the nature of contribution towards capital cost of setting up projects are treated as capital reserve. However, grants
or subsidies relating to an expense item is recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them to the costs,
which it is intended to compensate.

Borrowmng costs directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of the cost of assets till
the date of commencement of commercial use of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit & Loss

Account.

Stock sold on hire purchase basis are stated at full hire purchase price less instalments received-net of hire purchase financing
charges apportioned as income for the year.
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SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

NOTES TOQ THE ACCOUNTS

()]

{wi)

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accardance with the Accounting tandard-21
{45 21) "Consolidated Financial 5tatements” issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The previous year figures have been recast/regrouped wheregver necessary.

The subsidiaries {which along with The Sukhjit Starch & Chemicals Limited, the parent, constitute the Group)
considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial staternents are

Narmne Percentage of Voting Power
asat 31.3.2011
The Vijoy Steel & General Mills Co. Limited 97.03 %
Sukhyit Finance Limited 43.18 %
Scott industnes Limited 5997 %

These Conselidated Financial Statements are based, in so far as they related to amounts included in respect
of subsidiaries, on the audited financial statements prepared for consolidation in accordance with the
requirements of A52) by each of the aforesaid subsidiaries.

Deferred Tax has been provided inaccordance with the Accounting Standard A5-22 " Accounting for Taxes on

Income’ issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

Contingent Liabilities not provided for include :

{a) Bank GQuarantees issued for Rs. 12630 lacs {Prev. Year Rs. 113.80 lacs) in favour of West Bengal State
Electricity Board and Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board for power connections of Malda unit and
Gurplah unit, Cormmissioner of Customs / Jt. Dhrector of Foreign Trade for import of machinery under
EFCG licence and Excise & Taxatwon Offwer for sale tax subsidy of Gurplah unit.

(b} Central Excise Duty : Disputed liabilities not adjusted as expenses in the accounts include Rs. 17.24 crares
(Prev. year Rs. 15.93 crores) on account of Central Excise Duty in appeais. The major item cansists of Rs.
17.06 crores (Prev, year 15.90 crores) excluding penalty & interest on account of the demands raised by
the Central Excise Department since 1.4.1997 against sale of maize starch disputing the classificatior
thereof. The company has challenged the demand befare the Hon'ble High Court which has since beer
stayed by the Hon'ble High Court and the matter is subjudice.

(¢} Estimated value of contracts remaming 1o be executed on capital account and not provided for {net of
advances) Rs. 962 91 lacs {frev. Year Rs. 50.31 |acs)

(d) Export obligation pending to ke fulfilled is US 21,80, 796.71 (Prev. Year U% 76,203.20) under the EFCE
scheme of the Central Government on account of custom duty saved against import of capital goods a
concessional rates. The average export nbligation to be maintained every year is U% 1,80,471 {Frev, Yea
Mil).

Buildings of the Company at Malda and partly at Phagwara are built on a leased |and.

{wit} Earnings per Share : Current Year Previous Year
{a] Met profit (after tax) available for Equity Shareholders {Rs. in lacs) 378186 1434 .04
{b} Weighted Average number of Equity Shares having face value 13,79,82( 73,759,820
of Rs. 10/- each outstanding during the year (No. of shares)
{<) Basic Earnings per Share Rs. 10/- each {Rs ) (a/b) 51.25 19.43
{d) Diluted Earnings per Share Rs. 10/- each {Rs.} {a/b} =1.25 19.43
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Cep ey T3 THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

{will) Related Party Disclosures :
(a) List of Related Parties / Relationships :
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

(1Y The Vijoy Steel & General Mills Co. Ltd. ; Subsidiary
(it} Sukhjit Finance Lid. : Subsidiary
(i1} Scott Industries Ltd. ; Subsidiary

Key Management Personnel
(iv) Mr. |.K. Sardana
(v)] Mr. K.K. Sardana
{vi) Mr.S.M. Jindal
(b} Transactions with Related Parties in the ordinary course of business.

(Figures in brackets are for the previous year} {Amount Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars - Subsidiaries Key Management | Relatives of Key Total
Personnel Management Personnel
Rent Paid 4.63 4.63
(4.63) (4.63)
Remuneration 192.52 41.57 234.09
{110.52) (36.45) {146.97)
| Rent received 0.84 : 0.84
(0.84) | {0.84)
On account of sales | 0.38 0.38
, {31.39) (31.39)
On account of Purchases 1 13196 Z 131.96
| {151.20 | (151.20)
(Ix} Managerial Remuneration paid/payable to the Manager (s) :  Cdrrent Year Previous Year
(Rs.) {Rs.)
{1} Salaries 92,00,000 60,80,000
(i} Commission 73,68,692 28,113,050
tny Contribution to retirement benefit funds 7.50,000 5,32,800
(Iv) Perquisites 19,33,198 16,26,723

(%} Interest on overdue lease and hire purchase instaiments has not been taken into consideration and will be
accounted for on receipt basis.

{x1) Advance lease rental/hire purchase instalments relating to cases maturing within one year have been taken
as current liabilities.

{xil} Segment Reporting : The company’s operating business are organized and managed separately according to the
value of the product. Four primary segments are identified, starch & (ts derivatives, readymade garments, leasing
& hire purchase financing and manufactuning of heavy machinery. Segment information 15 appended hereto.

M.G. SHARMA 5.M. JINDAL LK. SARDANA
S5t Wice President & CFOD Executive Director & Secretary Mg. Director
As per our separate report of even date — < ¢ HINDAL

For Y.k Sud & Co. A

Chartered Accountants _ V. K SARDANA
(Y K. Sud) DIRECTORS A K. SARDANA

B Com. FoO A ; KK S4RDANA
Prap.  SK.ANAND
Memb No. 16875 P KAPAHI

Place  Jalandbar
Datea 1HE June, 2011
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2011

...... - —— e el —

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2011 31st March, 2010
{Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIITIES

Net Profit before tax 4849 .24 1,868.09

Adjustments for non-cash items

Depreciation 707 .98 637.14

Provision for sub standard assets 23,93 28.97

Preliminary Expenses - -

Bad Debts written off 5.82 (3.03)

Provision for gratuity 3.14 34.72

Adjustments for non-operating activities

Interest & Dividends received (29.00) (22.92)

interest paid 096,73 710.36

Profit an sale of assets (34.06) (17.26)

Flows from operations before working capital changes 6223.78 3236.07

Changes in working capital

Trade and other recewvables (729.20) (425.52)

Inventories (264.22) (2,351.03)

Trade Payables 505.47 (108.83)

Other Liabilities (226.84) 136.04

Flows from operating activities {714.79) {2,749.34)

Direct Taxes Paid

Income Tax (970.25) (337.90)
{970.25) (337.90)

Net Fiows from gperating activities 4,538.74 148.83

FLOWS FRONM INVESTING AL TIVITIE

Purchase of Fixed Assets (3,156.65) (1,193.95)

Sale of Fixed Assets 50.63 17.98

Investments (885.23) 234.01

Acquisition of Minority Interest 2.65 (2.21)

Capital Subsidy - —

Interest & Dividend Received 29.00 2292

NET FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {3959.60) (921.25)

CLowS FROM FINANCENS ACTIVITIES

Borrawings for [Repayments of) working capitai loans (582.03) 2186.35

Term Loans raised (427.02) (445.96)

Other Loans raised 2218.56 (104.09)

Dividends Paid (772.45) {344 82)

Interest Paid (696.73) (710.38)

NET FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES {259.67) 581.12
Net Cash Flows during the year 319.47 (191.30)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 209.91 401.21
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 529.38 20991
M.G. SHARMA S.M.JINDAL I.LK. SARDANA
Sr. Vice President & CFO Executive Director & Secretary Mg. Diractor
As per our separate report of even date _

For Y.K. Sud & Co. >.C. JINDAL
Chartered Accountants V. K. SARDANA
(Y K. Sud) DIRECTORs | /K- SARDANA
B.Com. F.C.A. . K.K.SARDANA
Prop. - S.K.ANAND

Place : Jalandhar
Dated : 10th June, 2011
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Amt. Rs. " 000

Particulars Sukhjit Finance Scott Industries Vijoy 5tee] & General

Limited Limnited Mills Co. Limited
lssued and Subscribed
share Capitai 4%, 504 44014 2,306
Reserves & Surplus/
(Accurmmulated Lasses) (32,783} {19,719} A5
Total Assets 49 500 1,048,437 3,810
Total Liabilities 49,500 1,048,437 3410
Investments 3714 - -
Turnover 113 43117 14, 840
Profit/{Loss) before taxation (3,652} (5,373) {(511)
Frovision for taxation
{Inclugding Dreffered Tax) - (370 132
Profit/{Loss) after taxation {3,652] (5,743} {379)
PFroposed Dividend (iT any) Nl il il
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SCHEDULES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
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The Sukhiit Starch & Chemicals Limited, Phagwara

THE SUKHHT STARCH & CHEMICALS LIMITED
SARA| ROAD, PHAGWARA-144401

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Shareholders attending the Meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the attendence
slip and handover at the entrance of the meeting hall.

| hereby record my presence at the 67th Annual General Meeting of the company held on Wednesday,
the 27th day of July, 2011 at 10.00 A.M. at Regd. Office of the Company at Phagwara-144401.

||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||

Full Name of the Shareholder Signature of the Shareholder

{in Block Lettars)
Folio NO...ooo e
Full Name of Proxy Signature of the Proxy

{in Block Letters)

he Sukhiit Starch & Chemicais tLimited

PROXY FORM
LWVE i e OF in the district of.......ociiivi e, being
a member/members of the above named Company hereby appoint. . ..., af
................................... in the distnct of ..o falling himo o
of o the district of L .._as my/four proxy to vote for mefus

on my/our behalf at the 67th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company, to be held on
Wednesday, the 27th day of July, 2011 and any adjournment thereof.
Signed this........day of L 20T

Affix
1 Rupee
Revenueg
Stamp

Signafure of the Shareholder

Note : 1. Member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint 2 Proxy to attend and vote instead of himself.
The Praxy need not be a member of the company.,

2. The Proxy Form duly completed should be deposited at the Registered Office of the company at least 38
hours before the meeting.




